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Key Figures at a Glance

20,000+

10,000

ERFEEFIERPEHE @22015538318)
Number of Licences and Statements of
Particulars of Business (as at 31/3/2015)

19,197 16,662 3,189 6,329
) EEER AR (EA) f@fi{—t};/ A EEESAE
Salesperson’s & Statement of

licence Estate agent’s
licence

lindividual)

Estate agent’s
licence
[company)

particulars of
business

ZHE NE (2014/15F )

Number of Examination Candidates

(2014/15)

4,261 5,081
6,000
4,000+ I I
2,000+
O__

HERIEERZR
Estate Agents Qualifying
Examination

ExEAEREA
Salespersons Qualifying
Examination

BEREZR (2014/155 %)
Number of Complaint Cases (2014/15)

RENEZR

Received

361

* DEAFEENEAR ETEERAEBERTIEN FLREZ
,\E&"Zfiﬂ’ﬂl% VAT B 778D #B R Y2 6 R B IR A SZ O EIZR

*  Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from
previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred
to and dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima
facie cases disposed of by the Operations Division.

KRB (2014/155F )
Number of Compliance Inspections (2014/15)

1,159 @ —FEE 20+ At first-sale sites*
1,809 © ihERIEREES At estate agency shops
614 @ B_LEE® Online advertisements

g
Total

3,582
* BIERRAAER BRHEEERENT-

* Include the development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.

WERBHE BENEREE (2014/155E)
Number of Licences
Suspended/Revoked (2014/15)

Lk
Suspended

10

EiEis!
Revoked

45

BEEEESTHNSE AR (20141555)
Number of Enrolments in Contlnumg
Professional Development Activities (2014/15)
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Corporate Profile

AR A
About Us
WEABEER(ESER)ER197E1 ARBOLE KB IEF)T

FXIZHATEMRE - X EREE @%%EEE BERERRONR  EHPHX
FITERIL  URBBITEE ﬁ@%iﬁ%éﬁﬁé%%ﬁé?f}

EEREREREN BHEANMARER BEHREENRF ATLET
B URHERGUEREKRIDOMERELXERTLERED - BB RITAXME
MEXZEREY UHBHEEHE -

EEREYBRERAKE -EERKEHAB %%'Jﬁﬂllﬁﬁﬂl%ﬁé& RAEL &lx

E—BMTZRBEEEKE -KEXREHEZER  BREMERETE -
The Estate Agents Authority ("EAA"] is a statutory body, established in November 1997 under the

é Estate Agents Ordinance ("EAQ"). Its principal functions are to regulate the practice of the estate
agency trade in Hong Kong, promote integrity and competence within the industry, and facilitate
‘P training for practitioners to ensure a proper standard of conduct.

£ ’a The EAA organises qualifying examinations, issues licences to individuals and companies,
# handles complaints against licensees, conducts compliance inspections and metes out
disciplinary sanctions to practitioners who have breached the EAO. The EAA also
organises activities for the professional development of the trade and promotion of

\k‘n ! consumer education. »
J "

& The EAA is a self-financing body. It consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, l L
é -“Rx ‘r and not more than 18 ordinary members from various sectors in 1” P

‘i ' '« the community, including the estate agency sector. The Chairman,
A } = 4 Vice-chairman and every ordinary member are appointed \
- by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special L
- - . .
‘ Administrative Region. ‘ &
21!
4 E !

i
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Our Vision

EREMEREZRNNE LERSBERE UNREBBEENERZ &

XRHEREEXZTHERE WERHEEE -

excellence in regulating the practice of the estate agency trade, for the protection of consumers’

interests; and

supporting the development of an estate agency profession worthy of the respect of the

community.

, A ¥ 1 o

Our Mission

L "ol

MEEBHERERNIE  BANFTENEXEN UAXRFLSHNEREEMRST -

To regulate the practice of estate agency in Hong Kong, raise the competence of practitioners and

set high standards of ethics and conduct befitting the trade.

B R A
The EAA Structure

{ { { {
15 RS

It _ HERER
et RRZAE pREAR z6%
Strategic Disciplinary Licensing Practice and
Development Committee Committee Examination

P Committee

/’ Committee

{ \

%%E%E i E28{|?<i<
Professional gjﬂaéjr:éﬁs

Development

Committee Investigation Panel
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BER —(ERE R i ERIESE
BRIZEX NERHLEESE -

One of our visions Is to support the
development of an estate agency profession
worthy of the respect of the community.

[
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Chairman’s Message

B2006F M RETHEREESE
BUEERINEERKERL  HER
BER0UFNAEEETRE —B-&E
EHREXAEERFERBBEIEFED
Sl ReEEMNESUIZEEER
FE2014/15FEMRIT - AR HEE
B A AL o

EXhEEEREETRREBBEI0E
EUF REETHEBLENEZES
THE HELEAZESETREREE
BaIEXEF Z2EEZHBEE=ER
THRINEERARMERBEARANE
E o

BRBEZMNEIFENHRERR E&
BREEEAN  TTRAEFRERERR
RE - AREETROEHRN RED
REXAZTAE BFRAEMET
EHEZEKFE -

EABMETISE0ULEERER
SREMEBEEHNBRERNE NME -
01415FEBFAREB AT —FF
EMGEKFEZHRE  SEEFN—FF
EMHEAMBEDS -

WEREEER 2014/1553R

Having been a Board member of the Estate Agents
Authority ("EAA”) since November 2004, | was honoured
to take up the Chairmanship in November 2014. This is
my first Chairman’s message for the EAA’s Annual
Report and | am delighted to be able to share with you
the highlights of the EAA’s performance in 2014/15 and
my mission and thoughts for the EAA.

It is a privilege for me to have served on the EAA’s
Board for more than ten years. Over the years, | have
been appointed as the Chairman of the former
Licensing and Practice Committee, Chairman of the
Practice and Examination Committee and the Vice-
chairman of the EAA. Such an extensive affiliation
enables me to understand how the EAA and the estate
agency trade work.

Through the great jobs of the past chairmen, the EAA
has accomplished a lot and solved a lot of issues for
the trade. In my term of chairmanship, I look forward
to working closely with the trade to enhance the
professional standard of this industry.

After the steep plunge in both the number of
transactions and total consideration in 2013/14, the
Hong Kong property market experienced a rebound in
2014/15. However, the focus of the market shifted to
the thriving first-hand residential market as the
second-hand residential market experienced the
steepest dive.



BEBRRSRAEFTER  R2013/142
2014/15FEHRE > —FEEMHHA
EREER - BR 5 REKEEL A
—EBEBREE - R 201415F F
M—FEEHEHENR I TEELLATE
ERFEAERESM - EHE
BKEFE_FEEMSHF /NI E
REARZEZAK AEMR T~
RNEURIZITE MR PR A ER
—FEEHIE o

Bt BEERMBRBUNRITE
R EAIREHE —FEEDXENT
RAENEEAELMRE TRRE
MARETT LEEBREE RMHEMN
15l

R ERAEENEENHRE—
FARERBIERNE T St
PR RBKFEERSHE-FRN
- EERTEFEMRAEER
HLEHEFMARNRHAEEEKFE B
NREFEEORS

1 —FAEENEESNBE R 20100 FE
119,3935% * 2011/12F £ 62,493 R » 2012/134F
J£ 65,858°R * 2013/14%F £ 33,476 7R }& 2014/154F
[£52,7825R - (BRI AR : LHbskfiiE)

2 —FAEENEEANBE AL 20100 FE
11,9845% » 2011/124F £ 11,8705% » 2012/134F [&

12,9975 » 2013/14 5 E 11,717 3R ] 2014/155F [&
17,0055% (AR« L3l sE)

e ™
rt‘ b

Although Government figures show the second-hand
residential market slowly recovered in 2014/15 from
2013/14, the number of transactions was still much
lower than those in the previous three financial years'.
On the contrary, the transaction number of primary
sales in 2014/15 reached the highest in comparison
with the previous four financial years’. This situation
affected the small-to-medium sized estate agency
companies the most, as their businesses mainly focus
on the secondary residential market. As a result, many
of them shifted to participate in the first-hand
residential market, which they were not familiar with.

Due to this shift, the EAA has to act swiftly to ensure
that the conduct of estate agents in promoting first-
hand residential properties is in order; and all the
participating estate agents, no matter if they are from
large or small agencies, can comply with all the
guidelines set by the EAA.

At the same time, the spotlight in the first-hand
residential market during the year also attracted much
public attention and expectation on the trade’s conduct
and their services. The EAA, hence, not only needs to
better regulate the trade but also educate them and
enhance their professional standard so that they could
provide the public with quality services.

1 The total number of agreements for sale and purchase of building
units of second-hand residential buildings was 119,393 in 2010/11,
62,493 in 2011/12, 65,858 in 2012/13, 33,476 in 2013/14 and 52,782 in
2014/15. Source: Land Registry.

2 The total number of agreements for sale and purchase of building
units of first-hand residential buildings was 11,984 in 2010/11, 11,870
in 2011/12, 12,997 in 2012/13, 11,717 in 2013/14 and 17,005 in 2014/15.
Source: Land Registry.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15 08
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Chairman’s Message
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L

EERKMESERIBF  BERAR
AT O E R IR R A
250 -

Irrespective of the challenges or fluctuations in the
market and society, the EAA always strives for
excellence in regulating the practice of the estate
agency trade, for the protection of consumers’
interests; and supporting the development of an estate
agency profession worthy of the respect of the
community. Throughout the years, the EAA has kept its
promise:

Integrity our Cornerstone
Credibility our Priority

Bearing this in mind, the EAA continued to discharge
its duties effectively in 2014/15. | will elaborate on the

examples of such in the following paragraphs.

A consistent law enforcer

The EAA has been established for 18 years. It is tasked
to enforce the Estate Agents Ordinance ("EAQ") and its
subsidiary legislations fairly and effectively.

WEREEER 2014/1553R



ARBGEE B — B BOE I BE
BRAEERMT SE®E - 7155
T AT R R 15 9 - DA B U8 48
HAEITA -

2014/15F E - B2 & @ % #8351 3,000/%
MKE ERENEARMNEEHRE
T A B AR A PI 2R AB BE B0 0% D) A0 45
El

FREERLEBIMERERHEE
—FEEVEEHNTRET  BMAE
PR U8 7] BE BRI REAR b 1P B AR I RN 45
5l AR AT AL - R % /N i A KR
NRAHNEE-—FEETRBL A
DoOHMEERA/LBERTZHER—
FHEZHE BRMMTHES
ISENRIEEE =R

IR BEEREMEER2E—F(F
EMERHEENFTEA  WEKXATLIA
MOEEXBEERELCKAEH
B REUEIR I — FHERX FHEH
B BHEEGCFLBERE 25
EREZEM -EERDR2015F4F
RELABRFARES -

BHRERBEEKF

EERBRAITCEEREBEL) T
BESERMAERR TELEEH
HEBLE BREAIRHIESERE &
201415FE  EERRBLENMHRE
BE Hbh—MEBEAIBSHEMERE
BRI A ERBEEENEE] -

o

h'.
-

To facilitate timely and consistent enforcement
measures, the EAA adopted various mechanisms
during the year for intelligence on prevailing issues
from all fronts to deter any possible breaches and
malpractices.

Through nearly 3,000 compliance checks in 2014/15,
the EAA also took the opportunity to carry out its
advocacy work with the trade, ensuring that they were
conversant with the laws and guidelines.

In particular, as we are concerned about the conduct of
estate agents when promoting first-hand residential
properties, we have devoted much effort on monitoring
and ensuring their compliance. As mentioned above,
many of the small-to-medium sized estate agency
companies shifted to participate in first-sale, which
they were not familiar with, seminars on first-sales
were thus organised to familiarise these companies
with the EAA’s guidelines on the subject.

In fact, in the closing of 2014/15, the EAA was also
studying on requiring licensees who are involved in the
sales of first-hand residential properties and who at
the same time submit registration of intent for
purchasing such properties themselves, to make a
declaration, with a view to enhancing the transparency
of first-sale transactions and providing more
information for consumers to consider before making
their purchase decision. The related new Practice
Circular was issued later in mid-2015.

Elevating the trade’s practice standard

Apart from enforcing the EAO, the EAA reviews the
trade’s practice from time to time and issues related
practice circulars to provide guidelines for the trade to
follow. In 2014/15, four practice circulars were issued.
Amongst them was a practice circular on “Duties of
Licensed Estate Agents in Ensuring Effective Control of
Estate Agency Business”.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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11 BEREEER 2014155k

This Practice Circular aims to encourage the trade to
implement effective governance measures on the
employees of their companies. From time to time, the
trade’s image was tarnished by a handful of
irresponsible licensees or estate agency companies.
Their irresponsible acts resulting in behaviours
unacceptable by the public dragged down the trade’s
professionalism and social standing. | hope that the
issuance of this particular Circular, which specifies
expected standards, can reiterate the importance of
good practices and cause the potential offenders to be
more serious about their control on practices of their
employees.

The EAA’s Continuing Professional Development ("CPD")
Scheme has also continued to enhance the professional
standard of estate agency practitioners and introduced
a number of new initiatives in 2014/15. These initiatives
will attract more practitioners to participate in the CPD
Scheme and enhance their level of practice standard.
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Our effort in elevating the trade’s performance has
paid off. The number of complaints the EAA has
received in recent years has been in a steady decline.
In 2014/15, the number of complaints received dropped
24% compared to 2013/14. Correspondingly, the
number of inquiry hearings conducted in the year also
decreased. Among the common types of non-
compliances, the number of failure to enter into an
estate agency agreement with clients has dropped
significantly. It is encouraging as the EAA has worked
hard in educating the trade and the public on this
subject and it is, after all, a basic responsibility of an
estate agent and protection for consumers.

Educating and protecting the public

The standard of the trade has notably improved, owing
to the hard work of both the trade and the EAA. That
said, educating the public with useful knowledge to
guard against any malpractices remains our all-time
priority. We believe that one of the most effective ways
of protecting consumers is to raise their awareness
and knowledge of the property market and the related
Issues.

In the year, the EAA has produced a number of
educational materials for the public including a booklet
and videos. We have also participated in talks and
organised exhibitions to reach out to the community.
Through the mass media, the EAA publicised numerous
important messages to the public on various timely
topics and issues.

With a view to conveying useful information about
property transactions to consumers, the EAA sent a
“Consumer Education Package” to all estate agency
shops in Hong Kong in 2014/15. The Package facilitated
the trade to deliver useful information about property
transactions to their clients, such as the importance of
signing the estate agency agreement and conducting a
land search.

Growing alongside the trade

The EAA is not only a one-way regulator but also a
constant partner of the estate agency trade, especially
on the road of upgrading the social status of the trade.
One of our visions is to support the development of an
estate agency profession worthy of the respect of the
community. It could not be accomplished solely by the
work of the EAA but needs the trade’s recognition and
participation.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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Dialogue and communication with the trade is the key
to collaborative effort. In the years of serving on the
EAA’s Board, | have had numerous opportunities to
meet the trade and have meaningful conversations with
them. So has the EAA’s management as there were
regular meetings with major trade associations,
frontline licensees and agencies management
throughout 2014/15. Issues of mutual concern were
discussed and useful information on the trade's
practice was collected for the EAA to formulate
practicable policies.

Time never waits. Rising public expectations and
growing awareness of consumers’ rights are an
irreversible trend. With the consumers’ interests at the
forefront, professionalism is important for the trade
and more effort should be devoted to improving the
image of estate agents. It is a long but promising road.
Both the EAA and the trade should look beyond the
horizon.

To this end, licensees are encouraged to participate
more in the CPD Scheme, particularly after the new
incentive measures introduced during the year. Estate
agency companies should also work hard on setting up
an effective system to ensure their staff compliance
with the law. In the future, the EAA will continue to
raise the professional competence of the trade, as it
forms a fundamental part of our mission.

Being the new EAA Chairman, | would like to share my
motto with the trade.

Honesty is the best policy. Similar to the EAA’s
promise, “Integrity our Cornerstone, Credibility our
Priority”, | hope that licensees always remember the
importance of honesty (EZEE] and equity (R AEE]
when dealing with their clients and always aim at a
long-term estate agency career and lasting
relationships with clients.

A man may lose more in an hour than he can get in
seven. After all the effort of the EAA and the trade in
the past 18 years, | wish to see more estate agency
practitioners cherish their career in this profession and
play by the rules. Any unwise misconduct will tarnish
the image and the reputation of the trade which many
trade members and the EAA have worked hard for.



b

-
£

BN REMEENLCHNES
R REEREBRZ -
BHRRAZESRAKNE  BRERZE
BEghNBEEIEF LEZTESETFE
TRzt HMRBREZEeEFEIRIA
EM - HELEAZESTHFEREY
ShE BEBRZECSEIRREREL
Ao A NE28IEAE B ERER
TE -EERHRAKESEGNER
PRERMEHELHEEBMNSE X

RMEEER -

RELRBLEEREZTRMNH K
B BHREEABERL BEFRE-
S IBS ST A - IRE B LT AL
EoERREERRET KL

BERITHRAEREIFL LI RES
BFNEFEEBEGKAE 2 HNUR-
BB B BIERE A RBERINE
E BITRETREXERHER
BB RBEE -

U B - ARORSMOFIBRE—
FHIBIFT - BBEXRNTER
HER MG RHEER-—BAER
FIEMER -

RAKFERTMH L BB
FE

oy
rg.'_‘." b

Our work is the result of the joint effort of my fellow
Board members, the EAA Administration and the trade.
First of all, | would like to thank the immediate former
EAA Chairman, Ms Vivien Chan, for her invaluable
services and wisdom contributed to the EAA in the
previous six years. My heartfelt thanks also go to my
fellow Board members, including the chairmen of each
committee and panel: Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-Lling,
Chairman of the Disciplinary Committee; Sr LAU Chun-
kong, Chairman of the Licensing Committee; Mr
Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, Chairman of the Practice
and Examination Committee; Mr YU Wai-wai, Chairman
of the Professional Development Committee; and Mr
Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok, Chairman of Section 28
Investigation Panel. The EAA has also received a lot of
support and guidance from Professor Anthony Cheung
Bing-leung, Secretary for Transport and Housing, and
his team.

| welcome our new members to the EAA Board,
including Ms Jane Curzon LO, Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu,
Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai, Ms Maggie TSUI Yeuk-ting, Mr
Lawrance WONG Dun-king, Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu
and Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong.

| am blessed to have the dedicated work of an
outstanding management team, including Ms Eva LAU,
Director of Regulatory Affairs and General Counsel, Ms
Annie FONDA, Director of Operations, and Mr Cavan
CHEUNG, the newly on-board Director of Services, who
are ably led by Ms Ruby HON, our Chief Executive
Officer.

May | take this opportunity to thank the above all once
again for their tireless support over the past year, and |
look forward to shaping the professionalism of the
trade through our continued partnership in the near
future.

William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBs, Jp
Chairman

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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Regardless of how buoyant the market is,
the EAA strives to continue its efforts in
regulating estate agents and enhancing
the professional standard of the trade.”
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| am delighted to present my second annual report of
the Estate Agents Authority ("EAA") as the Chief
Executive Officer. The EAA, as always, has been
dedicated to regulating the estate agency trade,
promoting the trade’'s professionalism and enhancing
consumer education; and the year 2014/15 was no
exception.

The property market in Hong Kong in 2014/15 has been
slowly recovering from the significant drop in the
previous year. While another series of supervisory
measures on property mortgage loans made by The
Hong Kong Monetary Authority and The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited have been in place since
February 2015, the total number of property
transactions in 2014/15, amounting to 90,082, is still
51% higher than the figure in 2013/14, and the total
consideration has also risen by 58% to $617 billion. Yet
both figures are nevertheless lower than those of
2012/13.

That said, the number of licences has slightly increased
by 1.2% over that of the previous year. The total number
of individual licensees reached 35,859 as at the end of
March 2015, and the overall number of candidates
participating in the qualifying examinations has also
slightly increased 0.75% to 9,342.

Regardless of how buoyant the market is, the EAA
strives to continue its efforts in regulating estate
agents and enhancing the professional standard of the
trade.
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Over the years, the EAA has issued various practice
circulars for the trade to comply with. They serve to
heighten the estate agency trade’s vigilance against
non-compliances and enhance the trade’s professional
standard. To further improve the conduct and
compliance of the trade, the EAA conducted 1,159
compliance checks at first-sale sites and 1,809 at
estate agency shops in 2014/15. During these checks,
licensees were also educated on the new practice
circulars and the requirements relating to estate
agency practice. A total of 614 inspections of online
advertisements were also conducted during the year.
At the same time, the EAA reminded the trade to
comply with the new guidelines through organising
seminars under the Continuing Professional
Development ("CPD") Scheme, issuing Letters to
Licensees, and holding regular meetings with the
trade.

As the Stamp Duty [Amendment] Ordinance 2014 was
gazetted earlier in 2014, details of the revised Special
Stamp Duty ("SSD”) and Buyer's Stamp Duty ("BSD”)
were at last finalised. Hence, in May 2014, a relevant
Practice Circular was updated and issued, reminding
estate agents that if it could be ascertained that the
sale and purchase of the residential property being
handled by them would be subject to SSD or BSD, they
should draw their clients” attention to this fact before
entering into any provisional agreement for sale and
purchase ["PASP") and advise their clients
appropriately.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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In relation to the adjustments to ad valorem stamp duty
("AVD"], a Practice Circular was also issued in October
2014 to remind estate agents that they should bring to
the attention of clients before they enter into any PASP
that the sale and purchase of the property would be
subject to the AVD at a higher rate unless specifically
exempted or otherwise provided.

What is more, with a view to better facilitating the
management of estate agency companies to properly
control their business and ensure compliance of
frontline agents, in March 2015, the EAA issued a new
Practice Circular on effective control of estate agency
business, which will take effect in September 2015. It
sets out the integral parts of an effective governance
system and provides guidelines on the establishment
of proper procedures or systems to a licensed estate
agent on how to supervise and manage his business of
doing estate agency work to ensure that his employees
or persons under his control comply with the provisions
of the Estate Agents Ordinance ("EAQ").

The EAA also developed a set of relevant “Questions
and Answers” and a “checklist for Licensed Estate
Agents” which could be downloaded from the EAA
website for the trade to adopt.
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To ensure that only those who meet the requirements
of the EAO could stay in the trade, in 2014/15, the EAA
revoked a total of 45 licences because those licensees
were no longer eligible to hold a licence. During the
year, the EAA has also adjudicated 256 non-compliant
cases and a total of 255 licensees were disciplined.

On enhancing the professional knowledge of the
existing licensees and to encourage licensees’
participation in the CPD Scheme, a series of new
incentive measures of the CPD Scheme were
introduced in 2014/15.

The measures include awarding one bonus core CPD
point to licensees who have successfully accumulated
every three core CPD points from their participation in
the EAA’s e-Learning programmes, within the CPD
period commencing 1 October 2014 and ending 30
September 2015.

At the same time, when calculating the CPD attainment
for each CPD period, the number of CPD points earned
by taking web-based distance learning activities is no
longer capped until further review.

These initiatives allow licensees to earn more CPD
points through the e-Learning platform, which offers a
good learning opportunity to the licensees without time
and space constraints.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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The EAA continued to hold liaison meetings with trade
associations and meet frontline licensees in various
districts through the focus group meetings regularly
during the year to maintain a two-way communication.

In order to promote consumer related information and
raise the public's awareness of the EAA, the EAA
continued its efforts through collaborations with the
media and other initiatives. During the year, the EAA
organised two press conferences, issued 22 press
releases, and arranged 28 feature interviews. A total of
53 articles were also contributed to newspapers and
media websites to promote consumer related
information and the EAA’s work through different
media.

In the year, the EAA produced two new consumer
videos on the subjects of “Appoint licensed estate agent
to avoid disputes” and “Fill in all the blanks in the
provisional agreement for sale and purchase before
signing to avoid loss”. To enhance the EAA's
outreaching efforts, these videos are available at the
EAA’s website and at the YouTube channel. The EAA
also held roving exhibitions at several shopping malls
in different districts. Display panels with useful
information for consumers were set at the exhibitions
for the public’'s viewing.

Supervision, enforcement and education are the
essential elements underpinning the quality and
standard of the licensees. The EAA will continue to
focus on the effectiveness of these measures and will
strive to help our stakeholders better understand our
work.
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Despite the challenges in the buoyant property market,
the EAA is confident that it could ably fulfil its core
objectives, thanks to the invaluable advice and guidance
of the EAA Chairman and other Members. My
appreciation also goes to our hard-working directors
and staff, who have shown an incredible degree of
professionalism, dedication, and commitment to their
work. Without their strenuous support and readiness to
walk an extra mile at all times, we could not have
accomplished so much throughout the year.

Ruby HON
Chief Executive Officer
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Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok

REHAFHL
Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, Jp

BB AT 4+ (B )
Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, JP (Vice-chairman

RXHERFHL  BBS(EJF)
Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBS, JP (Chairman)

2I4ROT R 2 8D
Sr LAU Chun-kong

REBERNFHL
Mr YU Wai-wai, JP
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Ms Agnes WONG Tin-yu, JP

NS 5 &
Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai

BIEBEZL
Ms Jane Curzon LO

RMEF XL
Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong

BEREE
Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu

BBERHIR
Professor CHAU Kwong-wing

mERMHLZ L
Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han

EELE
Mr LIU Che-ning

RES L L
Miss Melissa WU

MEFARFML 8BS

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
mEERLT

Ms Maggie TSUI Yeuk-ting

T HE L E

Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
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*&E CHAIRMAN
KR4+ 0 BBS

Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBS, JP

MIEE SRS EITHAK

Chief Executive Officer, Sun Hung Kai Financial

CEBREEEREGTE

cEEBBIBERE
cEHBEEEMPLARRABERE

T ANBREZE®ZEER
CHBNAMBMERBHARNEES
ZB

HKEZESRMEE (HE  #E
MFNFEE A

BERE

Barrister-at-law

e Deputy Chairman, Board of Review

(Inland Revenue Ordinance)

e Vice Chairman, Licensing Appeals Board

* Member, District Court Rules Committee

* Member, Advisory Committee on Travel Agents
° Member, Professional Services Advisory Committee
of Hong Kong Trade Development Council

K& MEMBERS

PREBER S 4

VICE-CHAIRMAN

BEILKFat
Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, JP

e Chairman, Council of The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts

e Chairman, Employees Retraining Board

e Chairman, Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited

* Member, Manpower Development Committee

* Member, Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee

¢ Co-opted Member, Education, Employment and
Training Task Force of the Commission on Poverty

RARED

Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
F-AFHAHNGEELEXZARA(KPER) EFHLE

Managing Director, Savills Valuation and Professional Services (Greater China)

cHERBLFAEHECEEYKE

cEBAEMBEEXNEA

BEEXE

* Member, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings] of

Development Bureau

* Member of General Practice Divisional Council,

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
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Chair Professor and Head of Department of Real Estate and Construction,

Director, Ronald Coase Centre for Property Rights Research,

CEEREMEMLHEZES
Bk & (2011-2017)

s FRZEBBE(TTEEEBKA)
i 8 (2013-2016)
i RNBERAZANEEGKE

(2015-2018)

s FRZEBMOETMRENKE
(2006-2012)
cE+TIRMFMELREESGLE
(2008-2011)

o BB 2/ 2 g g K (2009-2010)
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Professor CHAU Kwong-wing

EEARBEHENERZBERRLRZIE
BERSMEERTEPLEL

The University of Hong Kong

The University of Hong Kong

° Member, Home Purchase Allowance Appeals
Committee (2011-2017)

* Member, Appeal Board Panel (Urban Renewal
Authority Ordinance) (2013-2016)

* Member, Land and Development Advisory
Committee (2015-2018)

* Member, Appeal Board Panel

(Town Planning) (2006-2012)

e Member, Geotechnical Engineers Registration
Committee (2008-2011)

* President, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (2009-2010)

R Fam+
Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP

REPHENRMEBRAEA
BEE T KREFRERFHELD

Partner, Cheung & Yeung, Solicitors

Visiting Lecturer (Part-time], The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

HAREZERERE * Elected Member, Central & Western District Council
REFEXRKEBEZEGZLS e Member, Long Term Housing Strategy Steering Committee
° 'i?/%%)zi BEg®%8 * Member, Hong Kong Housing Authority
N8 %F%%@/\E#ﬂ%& » Member, Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries
HH% BHEBEE®ES and Conditions of Service, Civil Service Bureau
cEBEFRMAELEZNEAKE o Member, Disciplinary Panel A of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants

BT RIS
Sr LAU Chun-kong

mEBITERES
International Director, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

e Vice-chairman (Professional Standards), General Practice
Divisional Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
* RICS Asia Valuation Professional Group Board Member

e International Valuation Standards Council
Professional Board Member

e Member, Land and Development Advisory Committee
* Member, Surveyors Registration Board

* Member, Administrative Appeals Board

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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K& MEMBERS

FEE Lt
Mr LIU Che-ning

ERELBESRITAERARRKRITLEARATIHRIKRT
SARBETE

Co-Head of Banking, Asia-Pacific Global Banking and Markets,
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

BHEREE %a"k?ﬁi Bg e Member, Process Review Panel for the Securities and

fif%ﬁ@%ig E(ZUOé 2012) Futures Commission (2006-2012)
BHELHESEKERLZES * Member, Takeovers and Mergers Panel for

uﬁl BRAEHEZEGKE the Securities and Futures Commission
EBEFEAGLENHEAKE Member, Disciplinary Panel A of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants

HBEEGEE ° Member, Board of Inland Revenue
EAEEEZECEYREENIMA * Member of the Subsidised Housing Committee,
ZEGKE Hong Kong Housing Authority

EELLT
Ms Jane Curzon LO

REED

Barrister-at-law

BB AGLENEAKE * Member, Disciplinary Panel A of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

BT LB EEFEFFE  » Member, Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
THREEGKE Qualifications Appeal Board
ANREBEHEREHE « Adjudicator, Immigration Tribunal

. f%?&? BEEEZESIER * Vice-chairman, Security and Guarding Services
Industry Authority

FREF AN FHL - BBS
Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
FHERMITERA
Partner, Hastings & Co.
cHRBLHREHE (BEM X

Chairman, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings) of
Development Bureau

Deputy Chairman, Environmental Impact
Assessment Appeal Board Panel

Deputy Chairman, HKSAR Passports Appeal Board

CREFENMLFEZEGEE

et}

Ik

EBFAITHRER FFE
BlEF

WTREI LREEEEE
YU ERETRIBRFEEY
=g
‘FERLHFZEESGE
(2007-2013)

mEI>

Member, Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning)
Observer, Independent Police Complaints Council

Chairman, Housing Bureau Appeal Panel (2007-2013)
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Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai

SR EREER D AITHRER
FEMEARR A BITHAR
CEO, Ka Wai Property Agency Co. Ltd.

CEO, Ka Hing Properties Co. Ltd.

B e Chairman, Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association

° Member, Sedentary and Professional Services
Safety and Health Committee,

Occupational Safety & Health Council

e Chairman, Incorporated Owners of

Garden Rivera

wEERL
Ms Maggie TSUI Yeuk-ting

BRESBRARES

Director, China Merchant Securities Co., Limited

EBEMEHIINEBEBREZER Member, Standing Committee on External Affairs of
%8 the Law Society of Hong Kong

CEBEMELXEMEZESRIER Vice Chairman, In House Lawyers Committee of

the Law Society of Hong Kong

Chairman, Community Relations Committee

Community Talks and Services Working Group of

the Law Society of Hong Kong

Adjudicator, Registration of Persons Tribunal,

Security Bureau

EREMEMEHAEZES
HERBERRENETE

REBAFELERREHE

IR
Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king

TR EREERARAE
President, Many Wells Property Agent Limited

e Honorary President, Hong Kong Chamber of
Professional Property Consultants Limited

* Member, Employees Retraining Board

» Convenor, Course and Service Development Committee,
Employees Retraining Board

° Member, Quality Assurance and Review Committee,
Employees Retraining Board

* Member, Audit Committee, Employees Retraining Board
* Member, Tuen Mun District Coordination Mechanism,
Social Welfare Department
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Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han

HEEZEQRARS

Chief Executive, Consumer Council

& MEMBERS

CHRFEBKLEEELE * Member, Competition Commission

CHEBERNELEBRZESEAKE

=l Ex Officio Member, Management Committee of

the Consumer Legal Action Fund
REREBARNEESELE e Member, Advisory Committee on Travel Agents

CEEBCMEERESLFARRAA  Member, Deposit-taking Companies Advisory Committee,

ZEg%E Hong Kong Monetary Authority
FEBEKBRERINEELES e Member, Steering Committee on Review of Regulation of
%8 Private Healthcare Facilities
ERERMTPENREEEGKE e Member, Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in Food

Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu

EREEARAAESR

SReHE BB BRAFAEKES

Director, Wheelock and Company Limited

Managing Director, Wheelock Properties (HK) Limited

* Associate Member, Central Policy Unit of HKSAR

¢ Co-opted Member of the Hong Kong Diploma of

Secondary Education Examination —

Applied Learning Subject Committee of

the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority

e Director, Hong Kong Green Building Council and
Vice-Chairman, Public Education Committee

¢ Vice Chairman, Real Estate and Infrastructure Committee of
The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
 Vice-Chairman of Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong

* Member of External Affairs and Public Concerns Committee
and Fellow Member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

RED L
Miss Melissa WU

EFRBEBRITIEARA
Partner in charge, Audit, KPMG Hong Kong

HWEEIBBHMAYRER
ROHCERERELE
iR ABFHERRB R
FBEBREEERR
CBEBNTSERMERH
HHERBERER

Scholarship Fund Council

e Member, The Lord Wilson United World Colleges

* Member, The Standing Committee on Disciplined Services
Salaries and Conditions of Service

* Member, Advisory Committee on Post-service
Employment of Civil Servants
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Mr YU Wai-wai, JpP

BEKEMERRAAMAERS (—) B AL
General Manager (Project Management (1) Department],
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

EEHZEe e Chairman, Zero Carbon Building,

THR 0 EF Construction Industry Council

CBRERRB FIFEHE (EEY) » Member, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings) of
& Development Bureau
cEBEHEZRTEEXTA  * Member, Construction Workers Registration Board,
AftZEgKE Construction Industry Council
BRRBEEXE » Member, Working Group on Security of

N FRBE SR Payment Legislation for the Construction Industry
TE/NEK B (Development Bureau)
EEXEZEENE * Member, Construction Industry Council
(EZE2014F1A31H) (up to 31 January 2014)

¢
sk

Member, Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning])
Member, Appeal Board on Closure Orders

RIEF XL
Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong

LKFEARBERABAKA
Partner, Ernst & Young Advisory Services Limited
HMARE LHREZEGKE
cHEHT(HERENERRZESE) LHF

ZEEgKE (Immediate Health Hazard)
cEMBRRECTLFEZEGHE e Member, Product Eco-responsibility
§i/l\iﬂﬁ/§\ Appeal Board Panel
CREEBRMEDE M ETE e Member, Assessment Committee of
ZEgKE Exchanges with Taiwan Funding Scheme
CRAEBRENESEN e Member, Fisheries Development
ZEgKE Loan Fund Advisory Committee

ERFARF st
Ms Agnes WONG Tin-yu, JP

EulFERBMER(FE)
(BahFEREEMER(FE)RR)

Deputy Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing])
(Representative of Permanent Secretary for
Transport and Housing (Housing))
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1. mEEXT 7.
EREBREABLE
Ms Susanna KO
Manager (Legal Services and Examination)

2. REREE
B 7% B IR 75 1R 78 BD AR 12 8.
Mr KC LEUNG
Manager (Finance and Service Assurance)

3. REEBXAE
A IE 9.
Mr Kevin CHEUNG
Manager (Complaints)

AT R IE 10.

MrAlan LEUNG
Manager (Enforcement]

5. MREXE

BB R R B D T b i 2 11.

Mr LAM Ka Man
Manager (IT and Data Analysis)

6. REKEE
PR 7% # &2
Mr Cavan CHEUNG
Director of Services
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HEEL LT

AN ERRATHED 45 12

Ms Patricia SO

Manager (Human Resources and
Administration)

BeH L+

HEERBRAPLR

Ms Maggie TANG

Manager (Professional Development)

BR & i SE A

& 5 B = AR A IR

Mr CHAN U Keng

Senior Manager [Complaints)

REELL
EEER

Ms Juliet LEUNG
Legal Counsel

FMELLT

12 R B 4% 3B

Ms lvy LEE

Manager (Licensing)

WEML L+

HEE R A

Ms Anissa CHENG

Manager (Corporate Communications)

TR
BITHE

Ms Annie FONDA
Director of Operations

FRERZ L

REREREE
Ms Eva LAU

Director of Regulatory Affairs and
General Counsel

BTt

1T B EL

Ms Ruby HON

Chief Executive Officer
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THREST Administration and People

BT Staffing

EETRMNTHIPABETHAESEE The EAA Administration is headed by the Chief
EXEBEPRIEEEEERER LU Executive Officer ("CEQ") who has overall
DERNBEXERBTFTOERIEIE responsibilities for managing the business of the EAA,

By & E201593H31H & BB and monitoring and supervising compliance with the

BRFILBIUZET - BEKEBH4E Estate Agents Ordinance. As at 31 March 2015, the staff

EEHB1%-2014/15F E R B T/ establishment was 94. The percentage of employees

KERZ16% ° with disabilities was 1%. The staff turnover rate for
2014/15 was 16%.

EERITHMMEASEEE
Organisation chart of the EAA Administration
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Senior Manager/Legal Counsel Investigator Assistant Officer
o &= FE ® =4xE
Manager Officer Serior Clerk
O PEBER @ THEE ® x5
Assistant Manager Administrative Assistant Clerk
Fr i Remuneration

EERTHmN EES MK - AR The EAA reqularly reviews its remuneration policy and
@AM ENIS 8BS — % AL practices to ensure that our remuneration packages
B gE—FTHsFEDIRLERSI A are in line with the market trends and practices, to
AR R BEFSE T - Bitk - 2B maintain competitiveness in attracting and retaining
A THBYTMER QARIEERNESIT  high performing staff. To this end, we commissioned
K FERFEE AL - ZEEEA  an independent remuneration consultant to conduct a
MTEHBECDRIEBEMS KFEEITH pay level and pay trend survey during the year. The pay
BoSFEMNFEIRRIBAREFE LB ranges of various ranks have been revised in line with
BEIR2ZTHWNBEAELERME the market. Our annual performance-linked pay
il e adjustment exercise in 2015 also drew reference from
the findings of the pay trend survey.
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Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer
and Directors during the year

The total remuneration’ of the CEQO and directors'
during the year was as follows:

AB

Number of individuals

<500,0007T <$500,000 13
500,001 7Tt 2 1,000,0007T $500,001 to $1,000,000 0
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T $1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1
1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,0007T $1,500,001 to $2,000,000 3
&t Total 5

1 EERTFAEAHNMBERET  HAl AT
B # (BN 2014455 A 31 B & T &Y A R % 44
B5) - R2015F1 A28 HEMIRTRAAE -
HEREERBERNITEE -

2 BEHTMENBETF 2 -
FAENHS (WEA) -
3 BERBEBER201FIA2AMAEER -

DomB e R KRR

BETHIRZRRE

EEARHEERPENMAMENE
AESEAERE RMALARRETA
BRETEE  H&ROERKRFHK A
REFBRGKFOEN - E/AD
BRRMz— EERBNIRMAER
TREBILERES  SHERAK
SN FR] B2 A O 3R B B B R GRAR - DABO M
MERME -

1 There were four directorate staff during the year, namely, the CEO in
her capacity as the former Director of Services until 31 May 2014, the
current Director of Services who joined on 2 January 2015, the Director
of Regulatory Affairs and General Counsel and the Director of

Operations.

2 Total remuneration includes salary, contract-end gratuity and
performance-linked pay, if applicable.

3 The current Director of Services, who joined the EAA on 2 January
2015.

Staff Training and Development

With rising public expectations on the accountability
and transparency of the EAA, we need to ensure that
our staff members possess the competencies to deliver
their duties, respond to the community’s evolving
needs, and achieve consistently high levels of
performance. As part of its human resources strategy,
the EAA is committed to providing training and
development opportunities, including in-house or
external training and development programmes, to all
our staff in order to help them realise their full
potential.
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To enhance employees’ self-effectiveness and soft
skills, training in positive psychology in developing
happy habits and effective communication skills were
organised for all staff during the year. Other
management development programmes included
developing preparedness for crisis and creative
thinking skills for supervisors and managerial staff.

Other than training activities arranged by the EAA, staff
were also encouraged to attend self-initiated and
reimbursable training programmes related to their
work. All these training activities served to update their
professional knowledge and skills, stimulate their
strategic thinking and prepare them for greater
challenges and achievements ahead.

EERAEIRMEMUIBERREAENFIIRIE -

The EAA organises positive psychology and a happy life training programmes for staff.

35 HEREBEEER 2014155



-
b

X B8 B B
ﬁ*’”%é?ﬁ%if‘ 18T ZF‘&ﬁE’]iﬁ
CEBTHRETNSREEES R

&ﬁBFﬂE\.E% ABEGERRNEE
MH) B T/88 WL & MR EZE

TREISAM KRFEEITHTRA
HFRM I UBREAE - EEE
ELLIEHHE’]/%L/E@(QDTTEQW.J%

Exalkgeg)- Eﬁi,E\I’ﬁE &
wma MBS BERRBEL

S FEIANXREERANEZERE
F]—mhﬁﬂ‘gﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiffﬁcw
B —LEEHEE
WEIMﬂ&EEmﬁ
%Iﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%l%%

EERABIRMPINGY -

The EAA organises outdoors activity to build staff and famlty wellness.

EE THR AR

Internal Communication

The EAA sees the importance of communication
between management and staff. We are dedicated to
maintaining and enhancing effective staff
communication through regular meetings among
senior management staff, with the discussions and
decisions made known to all staff to ensure
transparency and understanding of the corporate
direction and the work of different sections, and
through regular sectional meetings. Management
regularly reaches out to staff through structured
communication sessions e.g. CEO’s Forum and briefing
sessions to share key topics such as corporate plan,
budget and changes in the organisation, and to inform
staff of specific developments within the EAA and to
provide them with opportunities to share their views.
Informal gatherings, such as staff outings and the
annual party, are organised each year as well to
facilitate staff communication outside the daily work
routines.
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We are committed to integrating corporate social
responsibility ("CSR") principles into our daily
operations and contributing to the sustainable
development of the community. Key CSR aspects such
as community, environment and workplace, are
integrated into all our operational decisions and
practices. Maintaining good CSR practices that align
with our role as a statutory body involves everyone at
the EAA.

A CSR Work Group was set up internally to steer the
direction of the EAA’s CSR developments and the
oversight of CSR strategies and activities.

Community

In order to further spread the spirit of “caring for
society” among staff, the EAA organised a Charity Run
in August 2014 and raised $128,000 for the Hong Chi
Pinehill Pre-school Centre to assist them in purchasing
some new equipment facilitating the movement and
fitness training of the children.

The 3-km Charity Run, which aimed to raise funds for
children with intellectual disabilities of the Hong Chi
Pinehill Pre-school Centre, was held along the jogging
track of Shing Mun River. A total of 77 people including
EAA staff, their families and friends, led by the Director
of Operations, participated with full spirit and
enthusiasm in the event, with the support and
assistance of volunteers from the Hong Kong Police
Force.

Each of the EAA runners was awarded a Certificate of
Participation as a token of appreciation. In the years to
come, the EAA will continue to encourage staff
members to take part in community projects actively
and contribute to society.

Furthermore, to encourage staff to help the
underprivileged and as one of our CSR initiatives, we
participated in other fund-raising activities organised
by the Hong Kong Community Chest (e.g. Dress Casual
Day, Love Teeth Day, Skip Lunch Day etc.), World
Cancer Research Fund Hong Kong and The Hong Kong
Red Cross.
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EERRREZNIAY REERBEBARERLEK-
The EAA organises a Charity Run fund raising activity for the Hong Chi Pinehill Pre-school Centre.
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Environment

We have carried out a number of initiatives and
implemented measures to reduce waste and promote
recycling. The EAA strives to improve our
environmental protection performance and to operate
as a more environmentally friendly organisation.

To protect the environment and save the earth’s
resources, we donated obsolete office furniture,
equipment (e.g. computers and printers) and stationery
to charitable organisations for recycling. We purchased
recycled paper for use in the office.

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing healthy and safe work
environment by identifying and reducing safety risks,
developing safety standards and guidelines and
regularly organising safety training workshops for our
staff.
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For the year under review, the EAA reported a surplus
of $9.8 million (as compared to a surplus of $12.4
million last year]. Income for the year under review was
$79.8 million, a net decrease of $1.2 million or 1.5%
over the previous year. Expenditure for the year was $70.0
million, an increase of $1.4 million or 2.1% compared
to last year.

Income

Licence fee income reported at $72.6 million, a
decrease of $1.8 million or 2.4% less than the previous
year. The decrease was due to the yearly average
number of licensees reported during the year being
comparatively lower than that of last year, despite the
number of licensees being on a gradual upward trend
this year. Examination fee income reported at $5.9
million, remaining unchanged over the previous year.
Interest income reported at $1.3 million, an increase of
$0.5 million or 67.5% over the previous year due to
higher time deposits interest rates offered by banks.

1% - 2%

91%

2013/14 2014/15

® FIBUZA Interestincome
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M Expenditure

BIXANERNENHEBER X AMA  Staff costs and office premises & related expenses
FTELHBER  HRIME#ETH69% K%  were two major expenditure items, accounting for
146% - TERZEMBEBAAENRE LK about 69% and 14% of our total expenditures
K- AENRBERES  TE - RE respectively. Items that saw major increases in
ENEARAREE  MEEHR B AP TE  expenditure were staff costs, office premises & related
BREAAZRHEMX (BERIESFIR expenses, depreciation, insurance and service fees for
DKEREMETERKA) NEHEZAR examinations. Items that saw major decreases in
BER- expenditure were community education expenses (cost
savings in annual report production and roving
exhibitions) and professional service fees.

s 66%

4%

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

® BT Staff costs ©® HAE MMM Office premises & related expenses @ EAfb Others

L1 HEREEER 20141553



b

-
£

EEREFROCHLELEEES  UE
VEHNEAREEEARMRITZERE

FOEKBRBITES RAKREAEA
MEFREINE - RGO RAED
TR A E2015FER AEE -
ZEREBEEANLIERER LT
THEEEBFATAERERIMERT
TEHEE -

BN RSB BEG R E BIRETT
EIEME NETHRMOBESRERE
o PlNERESBRERER K
REEEREEXARYEM ST
EEZINZERAR AL XFE
EMETRESENEEIN - UHIE
REEANERNBHRBEKFE -EER
M BEEROMAIREERITE
Rfttesl FEAXRNKRE LRB X

Sz
X o

E

MEHNEAEEREEMARAR &
B DR RE S E B L BT 5T R R AT
B PINE REMITREBELEMNER
BERELER: BRI REE
EREOBEBL HESS FE&
HEMRZEAEEMRAM: AREERS
BREZHNEMEBERXESR
B -

T i

aF

oy
rg.'_‘." b

The EAA Board approved a capital project fund to
develop a new Integrated Management Information
System (“the System”) to replace the existing system
and to enhance the current e-Services function. The
design of the new System has been completed and is
expected to be in operation at the end of 2015. The
System will streamline the internal workflow and work
processes and enable the management to monitor
work progress more effectively and efficiently.

What is more, the System will help capture a lot of data
so as to enable us to conduct various management
studies that would facilitate the fulfilment of our Vision
and Mission. For example, to address the various
regulatory issues, we need to have an accurate grasp
of the various phenomena happening in the trade and
the property market. On this, we would conduct
meaningful data analysis regularly in order to
formulate strategies for improving our service level,
quality and effectiveness. These data analyses could
set pointers for the EAA’s work, measure our
performance and service effectiveness.

With the implementation of the new Integrated
Management Information System, the EAA will be able
to study the trade’s behavior more scientifically in the
future, such as the frequency, severity and types of
common breaches; the correlation, if any, between
sanctions imposed and repeated breaches; the
correlation, if any, between educational background,
years of experience and likelihood of non-compliances;
and other correlation and cross-tabulation studies
between the EAA’s functions.
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Corporate Governance

EER—"ERNRFBRIMEESE The EAAIs committed to maintaining high standards of
A ERTHECGEEREIEH) TH  corporate governance and a high level of accountability,
REBER #FaEMER - 215 credibility, fairness and transparency in fulfilling its
N RFUHEMBERE LEFMDER  requlatory role under the Estate Agents Ordinance
BREMZAEE  KmMaAREE  ("EAQ7) for the best interests of its stakeholders, so as
ERBE L e to foster public confidence in the EAA.

BEBERRESE

Governance Framework

/\ | mERES
1 Supervision and
» Guidance
&l
Accountability Galk s =i
FERAE Em Checks and
Transparency balances
EEREERKHEHEE The EAA Board and Composition
EEE The Board

EERREERMNESARRML - B The Board is the highest decision-making authority of
EFTEERERERIE AR MAEE©  the EAA It sets the overall strategic direction and
PIEMEIERTE - FE T/ETEl - policies of the EAA, including its corporate plan, annual
FEBEE UL BEERITHESF work plan and annual budget, and monitors the
R IF o performance of the Administration.

L5 HMERBEER 20141553
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Board Composition

The constitution of the Board is stipulated by the EAO.
The Board consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman,
and not more than 18 ordinary members from various
sectors of the community, including the estate agency
sector and the Transport and Housing Bureau. Board
members are appointed for a fixed term by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Board members come from varied but relevant
backgrounds with diverse skills, experience and
expertise, including real estate agency, business, legal,
surveying, finance, accounting and academia, and bring
to the Board a wide range of experience and expertise
as well as an independent perspective. The combination
of members from within and outside the real estate
agency trade gives the Board a balanced perspective to
debate the issues it faces. Biographical details of the
Board members are set out in the section "Members of
the EAA” on pages 23 to 30.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") are held by different persons and their roles
are segregated. The Chairman is responsible for
leading the Board in enforcing the EAQ, setting policies
for the EAA, and overseeing EAA’s business and affairs,
while the CEO is the administrative head responsible
for executing the decisions of the Board and
Committees and administering the business and affairs
of the EAA.

EERTEHRTEE NEEEREBRE LM RBK -
The EAA board holds meeting regularly to set the overall strategic direction and policies for the EAA.
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Committees and Panel

There are five standing committees and one working
panel under the EAA Board to oversee the various
aspects of the EAA work. Each of the members of a
committee is appointed by the EAA Board and a
committee shall consist of at least three members.

The EAA Board may also set up work groups to deal
with particular issues from time to time. When
necessary, the EAA may also appoint other persons [i.e.
Board-appointed Members) who are not members of
the EAA Board to the committees, panel or work
groups.

The standing committees and working panel of the EAA
in 2014/15 included:

KE) 2EZLEE HE/NJHANT
TE/NEBR) T E -

201415FE EERFRLEETHE
E/NEBE
EERERLZECHET/NENREE
HFENMKERESNHE— -
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The terms of reference and composition of the standing
committees and working panel of the EAA are listed in
Appendix |.

! Not a standing committee, meet as and when needed
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Meeting Attendance

According to the EAQ, the quorum for a meeting of the
EAA shall be at least half of the members of the EAA
for the time being (including the Chairman and the
Vice-chairman whether present or not]. Each member
of the EAA present at a meeting thereof shall have a
vote.

In 2014/15, the number of meetings, the average
attendance rates and number of papers considered by/
at the meetings of the EAA Board, standing committees
and working panel were as follows:

REEN
2R HE 15 FE R+ XH#A
Number of Average Number of papers
meetings held attendance rate* considered
B/ 2 93% 23
The EAA Board
MHEEREERETES 0 N iE A 0
Finance and Strategic N/A
Development Committee
WEZES® 2 62% 12
Disciplinary Committee
BREES 3 71% 9
Licensing Committee
WELEAZES 2 77% 8
Practice and Examination
Committee
EXEREZES 1 75% 9
Professional Development
Committee
F28IRAT/NE 0 @ 0
Section 28 Investigation Panel** N/A

* ZBEehERNELFEER
EEREMIEKE -

BEERKE R

o EREHEENAYIETREES EAESE
BFRITEH o %/ HEE24/15FE W 8B

Euéﬂt

The attendance of committees and panel includes Board members
and Board-appointed members.

o Section 28 Investigation Panel is not a standing committee and will
only meet as and when needed. In 2014/15, there was no meeting held.
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2014FE 1M B1HZE2015F3H31H
1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015

REZN

=1 4G 1 R R XHER

Number of Average Number of papers

meetings held attendance rate* considered

EER 2 83% 28
The EAA Board

MHERREEREZES 1 78% 6

Finance and Strategic
Development Committee

WHEZEE 0 5@ 0
Disciplinary Committee N/A

BREZRE 2 90% 5
Licensing Committee

HEMEAZBE 1 80% 4
Practice and Examination

Committee

BEXRREZBE 1 100% 8
Professional Development

Committee

28 R E /N 0 NiE A 0
Section 28 Investigation Panel** N/A

* ZEEGRFERENEHERXREEERKER The attendance of committees and panel includes Board members

EEREHEKE - and Board-appointed members.

o FREAENEYIEEREZESG EAFTE  **  Section 28 Investigation Panel is not a standing committee and will
FRFERITEH o /N ATE201415F E I & B 5 only meet as and when needed. In 2014/15, there was no meeting held.
®i -

MISEDIE Integrity and Impartiality

B’RIFEE Standard of Conduct

KBBTFUBMRELAFEARE - A2 We are fully committed to the principle of honesty,

RIRFE © integrity and fair play in the delivery of services to the

public.

EERRHIEEEEEIEH) TH AE# The EAA is a public body under the Prevention of

BoEZEH T FIBEEERESR Bribery Ordinance. The Board Members and employees

KRERETITHHERAIREBAE]- of the EAA are regarded as “public servants” for the

purpose of that ordinance.

L9 HMEREEER 20141553
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As a statutory body tasked with regulating the practice
of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong, the EAA
recognises the importance of maintaining the highest
possible level of quality service and ethical standards.
A high standard of integrity and conduct is required of
all staff to promote and maintain public confidence.
Our staff members are required to comply with our
Code of Conduct which sets out our standards in detail
covering confidentiality, conflicts of interest and
acceptance of advantages. All EAA staff members are
briefed on the Code upon their commencement of
duties at the EAA, and may access the document easily
at any time through the EAA’s intranet.

The post-employment sanitisation period for the CEO,
Directors and Managers (including Senior Managers)
are respectively one year, six months and two months.
There is also a prohibition on all staff, including the
CEO and Directors, to take the estate agents or
salespersons qualifying examinations during and within
two months after service.

Disclosure of Interest

To foster public confidence in the integrity and
impartiality of the EAA, the EAA adopts a two-tier
reporting system on declaration of interest as a
safequard against potential conflicts of interests. All
Board Members and Board-appointed Members are
required to register their interests with the EAA upon
their appointment to membership and annually
thereafter. They are also required to declare their
interests at all EAA meetings in any subject and matter
under consideration by the EAA, and any conflict of
interest or potential conflict of interest which they may
have with the affairs of the EAA. The register of
interests is available for public inspection.

In addition, all staff of the EAA Administration also have
to declare annually if they have any financial interest,
direct or indirect, in any business or organisation which
competes with the EAA, with which the EAA has
business dealings, or which is being regulated by the
EAA.
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Regarding interests in land and property, all EAA Board
Members and Board-appointed Members are required
to declare any such beneficial interests they have in
Hong Kong or overseas, without disclosing details of
the addresses. Registrable interests include land or
property owned by a Member in his/her name or held
indirectly through another company or person. It also
includes land or property which a Member has a right
over its disposition or has any pecuniary interest
deriving from it. The managerial staff of the EAA
Administration also adopt a similar requirement in
declaring their interests in land and property.

We consider accountability one of the fundamental
pillars of corporate governance and have built our
corporate structure and management culture based on
this concept. Under the current structure, the Board is
overall accountable for the performance of the EAA.
The Administration is responsible for managing the
EAA’s day-to-day business and is accountable to the
Board for its performance.

To facilitate accountability of the EAA, a Corporate
Authorisation Manual was formulated to provide
corporate management authority guidelines. All
Members of the EAA, standing committees, work
groups/panels and all employees of the Administration
must act in compliance with the spirit and intent of the
Manual and within the scope of authorities conferred.

To increase the transparency of the EAA’s work, the
EAA furnishes the Secretary for Transport and Housing
an Annual Report, copies of which have to be laid
before the Legislative Council and are made available
to the public at the EAA’s office and website.

Members of the public are also kept abreast of the
EAA’s work and initiatives through various
communication channels, such as the mass media,
EAA publications and its website.
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The public are kept abreast of the EAA’s work
and initiatives through various channels, such as
the mass media, EAA publications and its

website.

ETEATZTIEEMBEE BREFR »  Tofacilitate the public to access information about the

EERCEFam —Z2&KEAEAMAER X  EAA the EAA has designated a Manager as the Access

T BEEHRARKRBEERF 2 toInformation Officer who is responsible for ensuring

ZEENRBEEES BOCAFAER that requests for access to information under the EAA’s

FAPREERERMESK - Code on Access to Information are properly dealt with
in accordance with specific procedures.

FREE HELER EXEH

No of Application Information Requested
Applications Outcome

2014/15 1 isk WRRFARE ZE SN ER
Declined Evidence on a complainant’'s dealings with
other parties

2013/14 4 PEER — RO AL (B 5 P B B R B AR D8R R B AR
All Accepted B EAME
Telephone conversation records and other
unused material for a hearing case
o KRIHFEZRXMH
Complaint case document
s EBREFANEARLE o@ETHLE
= &l 7R
Witness statements, interview record and
correspondence copies belonging to the
persons making the requests
s RAEFRR
Statement copy
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External Audit

The EAA’s statement of accounts is subject to audit by
an external auditor. In the year of 2014/15, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu was the external auditor of the EAA.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide
independent assurance to the Board that the annual
financial statements of the EAA are fairly stated. The
appointment of the EAA’s external auditor is subject to
the approval of the Secretary for Transport and
Housing.

Appeals

Under the EAO, licensees or licence applicants may
appeal against the EAA’s decisions concerning refusal
to grant or renew a licence, or its disciplinary sanctions
by writing to the Secretary for Transport and Housing.

The Secretary for Transport and Housing is required to
appoint a panel of persons for the purpose of hearing
such appeals. The appeals are determined by a
tribunal, the members of which are appointed by the
Chairman of the panel from members of the panel.

The Ombudsman’s Review

The EAA came under the jurisdiction of The
Ombudsman on 2 July 2010. In the year of 2014/15, a
total of four inquiries from The Ombudsman were
received and all of them were closed during the period.
Despite that none of the four cases was established,
measures for improvement of the Administration had
been taken.
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Service Assurance Review

To strengthen the overall corporate governance of the
EAA and to reduce maladministration, a new function
of service assurance was introduced in 2013 to ensure
that staff of individual teams of the EAA did discharge
their duties in compliance with the relevant supervisory
requirements, established internal policies and
procedures, and performance standards. With the
implementation of this function, we are committed to
enhancing our services and would make
recommendations on the improvement of internal
controls, as appropriate.

Two reviews were conducted during the year and the
findings were reported directly to the CEO and the
Board. Appropriate remedial or follow-up actions were
taken or planned to enhance the EAA’s internal control
and corporate governance.

As a responsible regulatory body, the EAA has a set of
performance pledges for its services to the public and
the attainment level of the pledges is reviewed
regularly.

Details of the pledges and the attainment level in
2014/15 are listed in Appendix II.
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The Road to the Estate Agency Profession
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The qualifying examinations serve to assess whether
persons who wish to practise in the estate agency trade
possess the requisite knowledge to provide estate
agency services. Currently, there are two types of
qualifying examinations: (i] the Estate Agents Qualifying
Examination ("EAQE") and [(ii] the Salespersons
Qualifying Examination ("SQE").

The qualifying examinations are administered by the
Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority on
behalf of the EAA.

,
S o om T

EREAEETHASMABEREENOALTED ARGIERMERERBE AT -

The qualifying examinations serve to assess whether persons who wish to practise in the estate agency

trade possess the requisite knowledge to provide estate agency services.
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A comparison of the EAQE and SQE is as follows:

wEREERER EREEREHR
EAQE SQE

IRER BFELR BF6R

Frequency 4 times a year 6 times a year

Z oK E 37N 2/NEF309

Examination Time 3 hours 2 hours 30 minutes

ABHE E—FD : 0EBLHE E—H : 0B LHE

Number of FE_Hy : 2006HRBKEBE—ZF F_EHH 106 BUKE—

Questions & & 2= 2 47 ) A & & 2 5 A7)
Part 1: 30 stand-alone questions Part 1: 40 stand-alone questions
Part 2: 20 questions based on one  Part 2: 10 questions based on one

or two case studies or two case studies

R ZIREEE

Format Multiple-choice questions

BIED 8 FHORDFTELH60%

Pass Mark At least 60% of correct answers in each part

AENE —H2RARZEEHERE
ﬁ’fﬁ%*ﬁ&#%/ﬁéﬁ%%uﬁﬁﬂ%%
EhEESEBENORHE EPaFE0CE

BRI 1) R K O A B (R
) S EIRE - AR HEAE B R

EREEHOMEBEIEAZFIA -

A REEY 55 — B i — fE Sk W fE fE 2=
M GERAZTERMERIERZE
XERABNARHNE BREYL
EMOER FTHARBOER EF
HE B E ﬁﬁ%%ﬁaﬂﬂﬁ\
HMWERHEE ARMEREREX
BEAENEHERE TR UENER
BERERET

Part 1 of the examination paper is intended to test
candidates” knowledge of various parts of the syllabi of
the EAQE and SQE, including the EAO and its subsidiary
legislation, the Code of Ethics, practice circulars, and
other relevant laws and practices applicable to the
estate agency practice.

Part 2 of the examination paper, which contains one or
two case studies, is intended to test in an integrated
way the practical knowledge expected of estate agents
or salespersons, including interpretation of land
search, use of prescribed forms, the requirements
under the regulatory regime, other practical issues
such as conveyancing and tenancy, and the ethical
standards and professional integrity required of estate
agents or salespersons in the performance of estate
agency work.
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FE20UL/15FE REMEREBER
EAREEEEREANAES R B
4709 N 25793 A I &E R EF @&
#93.6% & &8 EF47.0% °

E2013/14F SR BEREE b E
REBEREZEANABTRELOLTNE
L2VA  MEEEEEEREANA
A EF475.8%% 5,081 A

E201415FE - HERBERKZEH
NEXBEEREANTEHEKEXRA
42.7% K 48.2% » T 2013/14 4 [E ™R (& &
AR A KB A39.6% K 40.9% °

Since licensed estate agents could undertake an estate
agency business in addition to being an estate agent,
the questions in the examination paper of the EAQE
also test the knowledge expected of estate agents in
property valuation, effective management of agency
and supervision of salespersons in the compliance of
the requirements under the regulatory regime. These
areas are not included in the syllabus of the SQE.

Number of Candidates

A total of 4,709 candidates registered for the EAQE and
5,793 candidates registered for the SQE in 2014/15,
which were a decrease of about 3.6% for the former
and an increase of about 7.0% for the latter, as
compared to those of the previous year.

Compared to that in 2013/14, the number of candidates
actually sitting the EAQE decreased by about 4.7% to
4,261 and increased by about 5.8% to 5,081 in the case
of SQE.

In 2014/15, the average pass rate for the EAQE and SQE
were 42.7% and 48.2%, as against 39.6% and 40.9% in
2013/14.

HEREERZSR EEEEREH
Estate Agents Qualifying Examination Salespersons Qualifying Examination
6,974 4,470 4,261 9,031 4,802 5,081
(46.1%) (39.6%) (42.7%) (46.1%) (40.9%) (48.2%)
10,000 — 10,000 —
8,000 [— 8,000 —
6,000 — l l 000 |—
L4 L4 9 9
4,000 — 4,000 —
2,000 [— 2,000 —
0 1 1 J 0
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
O EEAH 0 &1’% O BEAH O &/BX
Number of Examination Pass Rate Number of Examination Pass Rate
Condidates Condidates
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Educational Background of Candidates

Increasingly, more candidates with higher educational
levels registered for the qualifying examinations. In
2014/15, the percentage of candidates registering the
SQE who were of tertiary or above educational level
was about 28%, and that for the EAQE was about 43%,
as compared to 27% and 41% in 2013/14.

Occupational Background of Candidates

Candidates included students and people from a wide
range of occupational backgrounds, including property
management, construction and surveying, banking,
accounting, retail and wholesale business. About 54%
of the candidates sat the examination for the first time.

ZESZM2014/15FEERNEFHABNREK
Number of Attempts at Examinations held in 2014/15

HWEREERER

Estate Agents Qualifying Examination

18.6%

O E—REZ
First attempt

O BEDREE

Second attempt

EEREERER

Salespersons Qualifying Examination

18.6%

@ FoRIALEE

Third attempt or above

O REEMEMH

Unknown
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ZHEBERAKE

Candidates’ Educational Background and Pass Rate

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
wmEELE ®EZ4L BEZE
BE bR AR k& arE bR SRE

% of % of % of
Education registered Pass registered Pass registered Pass
Level candidates rate candidates rate candidates rate

‘:f;_;i 34.6%  36.1% 31.6% 22.7% 30.4%  31.0%
R
o R ik 75%  42.8% 6.6% 33.4% 8.0% 34.4%
Bk EH F.6orF.7
Estate Agents REK
Qualifyin >
Exami?atgion TerJ:i{aJri/ or| 393%  47.2% L.4%  41.4% 43.4%  42.9%
above
fn*jnfw%f 18.6%  43.1% 20.4%  39.9% 18.2%  43.3%
EP ﬂ o) 0 o) o) 0 o)
F5 47.7%  36.2% 43.4%  31.6% 403%  36.2%
R NEX
BmEs Rt 13.4%  41.6% 147%  32.8% 18.0%  37.5%
BrES F.6orF.7
Salespersons KEs
Qualifyi p
i Teﬁijéor 257%  493% | 266%  460% | 27.9%  53.6%
above
ifn*jnfw%f 132%  43.7% 15.3%  36.3% 13.8%  43.5%
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Estate Agents
Qualifying Examination A

@ HEMREX 18.9%
Estate agency trade

@ R /g KA 11.0%
Banking/accounting/investment

@ TE M=% 9.3%
Retail/wholesale business

@ xER 5.2%
Property management
24 4£.8%

® Students
B 3.9%
Construction/surveying
Rz 3.6%
Insurance

0 HBAE/MERB 2.9%
Education/social service

@ BIE/EX 2.4%
Hotel/catering
mE 1.8%

® Unemployed

@ ki 1.2%
Tourism

@ XEI*% 1.1%
Clerical

0 E# 1.0%
Legal

O HEREE 0.8%
Sales & marketing

@ HAFHX 0.8%
Information technology

@ ENTH 20.6%
Unknown
Hth 10.7%

® Others

b '
B

EEEEREHR

Salespersons

Qualifying Examination

TEE

Retail/wholesale business

MEEE

Property management

B

Students

RI1T/ T RE
Banking/accounting/investment

B IR/ B

Hotel/catering

R

Insurance

BE ERS
Education/social service
B HE
Construction/surveying

REBEZEXER

Salesperson-trainee

XETIk

Clerical

mE

Unemployed

g3

Tourism

$HE KR

Sales & marketing

r e

Legal

B AR

Information technology

AR

Unknown

Hth
Others
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2.6%

2.3%
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1.6%

1.1%

0.8%

0.5%

0.4%

19.0%

12.7%
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To be granted a licence, an individual must have
attained 18 years of age, completed an educational
level of Form Five of secondary education or its
equivalent, passed the relevant qualifying examination'
and be considered “fit and proper”.

An individual may apply for a salesperson’s licence or
an estate agent's licence (individuall. Companies may
only apply for an estate agent’s licence (company).
Holders of a salesperson’s licence may only work for
licensed estate agents while there is no such
restriction for holders of an estate agent’s licence.
Each estate agent is required to, before carrying out
any estate agency business at any place under a
particular business name, apply for a statement of
particulars of business ("SPOB") for that place and
name.

The number of individual licences as at 31 March 2015
increased by 1.2% over that of 31 March 2014 to 35,859.
The number of company licences and SPOBs were
respectively at 3,189 and 6,329, representing an
increase of 5% and an increase of 1.3% respectively
over those of last year.

REEZ - BEE BB H3,09318 3 8 Eav @ A
JERR - M EFER A 8.2% °

During the year, the EAA granted 3,093 new
individual licences, a decrease of 8.2% compared
to that of the previous year.

! The qualifying examination must have been passed within 12 months

immediately before the date of an application for the grant of a licence.
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Among the 35,859 individual licences, 19,197 were
salesperson’s licences and 16,662 were estate agent’s
licences (individual).

During the year, the EAA granted 3,093 new individual
licences, a decrease of 8.2% compared to that of the
previous year.

The EAA vets each licence application to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws. In the year under
review, 146 applications were refused for different
reasons, such as applicants not having the required
educational qualifications or not being considered “fit
and proper” persons to be granted, or hold or continue
to hold a licence.

A licence may be revoked if the licensee is no longer
eligible to continue to hold a licence. During the year, a
total of 45 licences were revoked by the Licensing
Committee because the relevant licensees were not
considered “fit and proper” to continue to hold a
licence or no longer met the licensing requirements.

As at 31 March 2015, 31.5% of licensees had a tertiary
educational level or above, and 3.1% had an educational
level below Form Five'.

As at 31 March 2015, the average age of licensees was
35.4 years, which was slightly younger than that of the
previous year.

! These individuals continued to be qualified for licences because of the

exemption measures introduced during the three-year transition
period from 1999 to 2001.
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Size of Operations

The bulk of estate agency operations remained small in
scale. As at 31 March 2015, 93.9% of agencies operated
as single-shop businesses and less than 1% had five or
more shops.

Number of Licences and SPOBs in the Past Three Years

40,000
37,001
35,450 35,859
—0
30,000
20,329
18,923 19,197
20,000
o o @
16,672 16,527 16,662
10,000
6,333 6,248 6,329
® @ o
® o — —@
3,004 3,036 3,189
0
HZE2013F3A31H HZE20145F38318 HZE201593A31H
As at 31/3/2013 As at 31/3/2014 As at 31/3/2015

BEERRI @ MERE (EA) BRI @ BAMRRBEHI -+ O BERE (RF)EBR O 2EAEIHRE

Salesperson’s Estate agent’s licence
licence (i) lindividual) (i)
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Total number of Estate agent’s licence SPOBs
individual licences (i) + (i) (company)
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New Licences (Individual) in the Past Three Years

B B wm
Total Total Total
~---5,065 -, ---3,370 - ~---3,093---
3,539 2,181 2,100
4,000 —
3,000 —
2000 [— YRy L L
1,000 —
O 1 1 J
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
@ =EXEER HERRE (AA) R
Salesperson’s licence Estate agent’s licence [(individual)

BEBRANEEKE(HE2015F3831H)
Educational Level of Licensees (as at 31/3/2015)

HERIE (EA) BERRA A BEBIERIBBA it
Holders of estate agent’s licence (individual] ~ Holders of salesperson’s licence Overall
4.7% 1.7%

315% 4

©® FREUT BelowF.5 @ <X A ERSEERE Completed F.5 or equivalent @ KRZE=A L Tertiary or above
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FEANER (BZ2015F3831H)
Age of Licensees (as at 31/3/2015)

wERE(EAN)BREEA

Holders of estate agent’s licence

(individual) 4.6% 188% 30.7% 333% 11.1% 1.5%
LREMBFAA

Holders of salesperson’s licence 15.6% 298% 278% 22.1% 4.L% 0.3%
e

Overall 10.5%  24.7% 291%  27.3% 7.5% 0.9%

FEARMERENEARZS (BE2015F3A31H)

Licensees’ Choice of Language in Communication (as at 31/3/2015)

HERIE (EA) BERZAE A BEBRRIFAA e
Holders of estate agent’s licence (individual) Holders of salesperson’s licence Overall
13.1%

5.5%

86.9%

@® X Chinese @ EX English

REEENKERXN (B £2015F38310)
Mode of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2015)

LRFISHASRE
Total SPOBs
-------------------------------- e 7.
4,468 237 1,624
5,000 — '
4,000 [—
3,000 —
2,000 —
1,000 [— IJ
0 ) LA ) )
BRAAEE aREE BERKE
Limited Companies* Partnerships Sole proprietorships

* 3189 AR BRI AL E *  Operated by 3,189 company licensees
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5-10 11-20 21-30
149 43 8 16 5 1 4
5 3 2 0 0 0 0
55 6 4 1 0 0 0
* e SPOBs

The EAA and the China Institute of Real Estate
Appraisers and Agents ["CIREA"] entered into an
agreement on 3 November 2010 to lay down the
foundation for the mutual recognition of professional
qualifications of estate agents in the Mainland and
Hong Kong. The arrangement was intended to promote
professional exchanges and cooperation between
practitioners of the estate agency trade in the Mainland
and Hong Kong, and to facilitate the long-term
development of the industry of both sides.

According to the agreement, the EAA and the CIREA
will each nominate a certain number of qualified estate
agents to participate in tailor-made training courses
and examinations organised by the other party within
the 5-year agreement period. Upon completing a
training course and passing an examination, the
participants may then apply for the relevant registration
certificate or licence. The signing parties also reached
agreement regarding the handling of complaints
against licensees under the scheme and the imposition
of disciplinary sanctions against non-compliant
licensees. A notification mechanism under which each
side would report information about licensees who had
been disciplined was also established to ensure the
effectiveness of the regulatory regime.

As at 31 March 2015, 188 Hong Kong estate agents held
a registration certificate issued by the CIREA and 18
Mainland estate agents held an estate agent’s licence
issued by the EAA, both pursuant to the arrangement.
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Upholding the Professional Standard
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The EAA established under the Estate Agents
Ordinance ("EAQ") is empowered to, inter alia, regulate
and control the practice of estate agents and
salespersons and to take such actions as the EAA
considers appropriate or necessary to promote
integrity and competence amongst, or maintain or
enhance the status of, estate agents and salespersons.

Estate agents and salespersons must comply with the
EAO and its subsidiary legislation, including in
particular the Estate Agents Practice (General Duties
and Hong Kong Residential Properties] Regulation in
respect of Hong Kong residential properties. They
should also comply with the Code of Ethics and the
practice circulars issued by the EAA.

Legal Services

The EAA reviews the practices of the trade and issues
practice circulars to provide guidelines and directives
on estate agency practice from time to time, to enable
licensees to comply with their duties under the law. In
the year, four circulars were issued.

In light of the gazettal of the Stamp Duty (Amendment)
Ordinance 2014 which amended the Stamp Duty
Ordinance ("SDO”) to revise the Special Stamp Duty
("SSD”) and to introduce a Buyer's Stamp Duty ("BSD")
on certain residential property transactions with effect
from 27 October 2012, the EAA issued a practice
circular reminding licensees that if it can be
ascertained that the sale and purchase of the
residential property being handled by them will be
subject to SSD or BSD, they should draw their clients’
attention to the fact before entering into any provisional
agreement for sale and purchase and advise their
clients appropriately.
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To remind licensees to take note of the changes
brought by the Stamp Duty (Amendment] (No. 2J
Ordinance 2014 ("SDAO2") which amended the SDO to
provide for payment of the ad valorem duty ("AVD") at
higher rates on both residential and non-residential
properties acquired on or after 23 February 2013, a
practice circular on “Adjustments to Ad Valorem Stamp
Duty” was issued to remind licensees to take note of
the changes brought by the SDAO2 regarding the
increase of the AVD when handling the sale and
purchase of properties.

In addition, with the launch of the mobile version of the
Integrated Registration Information System (“IRIS")
Online Services by the Land Registry, a practice
circular setting out matters that licensees should pay
attention to if they choose to use the mobile version of
the IRIS Online Services to conduct land searches was
issued.

To remind licensed estate agents that they are obliged
to exercise effective control of their businesses and to
enable them to better understand the requirements of
section 15 of the Estate Agents Practice (General
Duties and Hong Kong Residential Properties)
Regulation ("PR15") that they are required to establish
proper procedures or systems to supervise and
manage their businesses of doing estate agency work
to ensure that their employees or persons under their
control comply with the provisions of the EAO, the EAA
issued a revised practice circular on “Duties of
Licensed Estate Agents in Ensuring Effective Control of
Estate Agency Business”. The revised practice circular
introduced more detailed and comprehensive
guidelines for the licensed estate agents to follow so as
to ensure their compliance of PR15. To enhance the
trade’s understanding and compliance of the revised
practice circular, “Questions and Answers” on pertinent
issues, samples of "Record of Pre-sale Briefing for
First Sale of Residential Properties”, “Staff Attendance
Record of Pre-sale Briefing for First Sale of Residential
Properties” and “Checklist for Licensed Estate Agents”
were provided at the EAA website for the trade's
reference.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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Complaints and Enquiries Handling

In 2014/15, the Complaints Section continued to
streamline work processes and procedures to ensure
work quality and speed up complaint investigation. In
response to The Ombudsman’s recommendation, a
new performance pledge for investigation of non-
compliances was established on 24 November 2014 to
serve as a management tool to monitor work standard
and efficiency. In addition, continuous efforts were
made to develop and set up a knowledge management
system/database for effectively and efficiently capturing
and retaining useful knowledge and expertise including
precedent cases, best practices arising from case
investigations, useful checklists for specific types of
complaints and breaches, advice from the Disciplinary
Proceedings Section concerning sufficiency of evidence
to ensure a consistently high standard of investigation
work.

RFBRFANERIETOMIRTARE
BRMEREHESE YOS
EEMRENEITE -

The Section handled 6,443 public enquiries on

woEE
5 ) &2 % A 1

estate agency practices related issues during the
reporting period and had taken follow up
enforcement actions in response to the enquiries
and complaints.
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During the reporting period, the Section received 361
complaints. The majority were related to second-hand
residential properties, with only 51 cases, or about
14%, related to first-hand residential properties. At the
same time, the Section concluded 460 complaints, of
which 167, or about 36%, were substantiated. Eleven of
the substantiated cases concerned first-hand
residential properties. Key allegations of the
substantiated cases included mishandling/failing to
explain the provisional agreement for sale and
purchase (or the provisional tenancy agreement],
failing to enter into estate agency agreements with
clients or to explain the estate agency agreements to
clients, and failing to conduct a land search or provide
a copy of a land search to purchasers.

Also, the Section handled 6,443 public enquiries on
estate agency practices related issues during the
reporting period and had taken follow up enforcement
actions in response to the enquiries and complaints.
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Number of Cases

800 —

604

600 [— PN 473
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Received Completed*®
* FATKNEREDATFEENER  EPLEREEFBRNLYEN TLEZERENEAR  URBITHHEED

REEETRILNEZE -

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and

dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Operations Division.
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Results of Complaint Cases Completed*
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2014/15

© BRI Unsubstantiated @ ERFNZ Insufficient information to pursue @ HA# Others?
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Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and

dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Operations Division.
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A completed case will be classified as “Substantiated” if any of the allegations involved therein has been concluded as “Substantiated”.
Include cases which were curtailed, withdrawn or not proven.

Compliance Inspections and Investigations

In 2014/15, the Enforcement Section continued to adopt
appropriate and effective enforcement strategies and
actions that were in line with established corporate
policies and operational procedures to perform a
timely, effective and sustainable enforcement role.
During the reporting period, the Section conducted 2,968
compliance inspections, of which 1,159 were at first-
sale sites and 1,809 at estate agency shops. The
Section also carried out 614 inspections of online
advertisements posted by estate agencies. As a result
of these inspections, the Section instigated
investigations into 59 suspected non-compliance cases.
During the period, the Section completed 187 self-
initiated investigation cases, of which 92 cases were
concluded as substantiated. Out of the 92 cases, 11
were related to first-hand residential properties.
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Include the development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.
EFBHRE
Self-initiated Investigations
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Number of Cases
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Non-compliance cases completed in the year*

* FATKOERBY BEFEEOEZE -

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.
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Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and

dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee and other cases disposed of by the Operations Division due to insufficient evidence.
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A completed case will be classified as “Substantiated” if any of the allegations involved therein has been concluded as “Substantiated”.
Include cases which were curtailed and those that were not proven.

To ensure that useful information and intelligence were
gathered, exchanged and analysed effectively to
facilitate consistent and timely proactive enforcement
effort, the Section had adopted various mechanisms to
obtain intelligence on the prevailing and emerging
issues from all fronts for early detection of breaches
and malpractices.

During compliance inspections, the Section also took
the opportunity to educate practitioners on the EAO, its
subsidiary legislation, the Code of Ethics and other
guidelines issued by the EAA to ensure they were
conversant with the related issues.

In 2014/15, the Section conducted investigations into 77
licence applications in which the applicants were
suspected of making false declarations or providing
false documents in the licence application or licence
renewal process. Besides, the Section also looked into
24 licence applications submitted by existing licensees
and new applicants, who had criminal records, to
consider whether they met the statutory requirement
of being “fit and proper” persons.
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Investigations into Licensees/Licence Applicants Who are Suspected of Making
False Declarations or Providing False Documents in the Application Process
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Investigations into Licensees/Licence Applicants Who Had Criminal Records
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* Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.
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Inquiry Hearings

Where the EAA’s Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") has
reason to believe that a licensee has failed to comply
with the EAO and/or its subsidiary legislation; or is not
eligible to hold or continue to hold a licence; or has
failed to comply with a specified condition attached to
his licence, a submission shall be made by the CEO to
the Disciplinary Committee for consideration if an
inquiry hearing should be conducted.

If the Disciplinary Committee is satisfied that the
complaint or submission is well-founded, it may
exercise disciplinary powers including admonishing or
reprimanding the licensee concerned, attaching/
varying a specified condition attached to his licence,
suspending/revoking his licence, imposing a fine and
making a costs order.

In 2014/15, the Disciplinary Committee adjudicated 256
cases, of which 251 were substantiated (i.e. 98%). As a
result, a total of 255 licensees were disciplined, among
whom 143 were individual licensees' and 112 were
company licensees.

During the same period, 10 licences were suspended
for periods ranging from three days to three months.
Licensees disciplined were found to have been engaged
in unprofessional conduct such as making
misrepresentations, failing to protect and promote the
interests of their clients, or failing to exercise due care
and due diligence.

A total of 179 licensees were fined, with the fines
ranging from $500 to $60,000.

! Including sole-proprietors and partners of estate agency firms.
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ERERBE* RE
Common Types of Non-compliance* Number

. AEPRUERNDEIRZFIEN  IRAAFERRERATEPOYEX
RXHERMERE  RARZFPREMEEH
Providing wrong property or transaction information to client or failure to 42
verify the accuracy of property or transaction information provided to client;
failure to supply property information to client

2. BEERIREUES  ABES/EAREMBLES  BHERES
ERHNES
Issuing a false or misleading advertisement; advertising without vendor’s
prior written consent; advertising in contravention of vendor’s instruction

3. REBETLMEM MEFRERRULEME
Failure to conduct a land search/supply the land search result to the 34
purchaser/tenant

h EREBMEBYENEBEA/MERANZEERET  EZWEIINREE
%/ ”7
Affixing an advertisement poster/banner on the property without the property
owner's/occupant’s written consent

5. AEWMREH /MHESTERLE LENE  REBRREZHEREH
Z/GREEERS BEHONALTEEES HBEATHES MHRE
AERERRRE
Failure to ensure that the vendor/lessor has the authority to sell/rent out the 25
property; failure to ensure that the signatory was duly authorised by the
vendor/lessor or purchaser/tenant to sign the estate agency agreement/
provisional agreement for sale and purchase/provisional tenancy agreement

6. REEBRHANMEER  RAEEBYEEHNRK (KRR
Failure to possess prescribed property information; failure to complete the 19
Property Information Form (Form 1)

7. RERRFITAXRBNIERIREERRTFTARR ”
Failure to complete the prescribed form as directed or specified in the form

8. RAHEEPIAMMEREHZ

Failure to enter into an estate agency agreement with clients

9. EVENERAEBEARARERRSR  EZWENESAMIEHRAY
BHEBYFZNENEREE : ARBEREANFTRAFMIEHRY
EHHERZYVENEREE
Failure to provide the saleable area of a property which was available from 14
the prescribed source when providing the floor area information in the
advertisement of the property concerned or state clearly for a property that
the area indicated was the saleable area of the property in the advertisement

10, RARVUZENEFAGENEENERHEEEXHETMAS
Failure to establish proper procedures or systems to supervise and manage 12
the work of employees or persons under their control

41

14

* BLOGLERNARSRBB-—IBEERFE -
* There was more than one type of non-compliance in some inquiry hearing cases.
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Actions Taken Against Licensees or Former Licensees'

B R R SR FF A

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Number of licensees or former licensees involved 513 571 423
TEME’
Type of actions®
BlE BT
Admonishment/reprimand 410 398 255
= £
HIEN
Fine 189 237 179
FE R AR b B 0 A 1
Attachment of conditions to licence® 281 308 238
TS ER
Suspension of licence 26 26 10
18K b BR
Revocation of licence 0 28" 45°
1 AETBHRBEGLEREEIDMELNAR  EhEROATETBERLENE -
2 EHMoEES  @YHR—FEALAREARREGE - RTH -
3 BB A R HE R RIS T 0 - ECBRRUBE R MT A -
4 VEHEEREAZAERZEGHTE - BARFRATNTAEEARIER AN MEEEBFARR: —RREHEER
AREALELZEGHE -
5 EUEHEERNERSOMREZERHTE LHRBEATNTAER AN TEAEBERAMR -
1 These actions were taken pursuant to powers under the EAO. Some actions may be disciplinary in nature and others not.
2 In some cases more than one action was imposed on the same licensee or former licensee.
3 Some conditions were attached upon the granting of licences and others attached thereafter.
4 27 cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the licensees concerned were considered not “fit and
proper” persons to continue to hold a licence, and one was decided by the Disciplinary Committee.
5 These cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the licensees concerned were considered not eligible to

continue to hold a licence.
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New Scheme for Disciplinary Cases

To heighten the estate agency trade’s vigilance against
non-compliances and improve their compliance in the
long run, a New Scheme (“the Scheme”] was launched
on 1 January 2014 to deal with some straight-forward
and prevalent breaches under the EAQ, Estate Agents
Practice (General Duties and Hong Kong Residential
Properties) Regulation, and Estate Agents (Licensing)
Regulation. Under the Scheme, licensees committing
the eight specified breaches for the first time since the
effective date would, subject to the terms of the
Scheme, not be disciplined but any subsequent
breaches within a two-year period might attract more
severe sanctions.

A total of 87 licensees were invited to opt for the
Scheme in 2014/15. Among the 87 licensees who have
replied, 85 opted for the Scheme, representing a
participation rate of 97.7%.
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It is one of the EAA’s missions to raise the competence
of the trade. Through implementing a voluntary
Continuing Professional Development ["CPD") Scheme,
the EAA strives to enhance the professional knowledge
of estate agency practitioners, so as to meet growing
public expectations.

Continuing Professional Development Scheme

The EAA has been implementing the CPD Scheme on a
voluntary basis since May 2005. Under the CPD
Scheme, licensees are encouraged to earn not less
than 12 CPD points within a 12-month CPD period, with
at least six points from core subjects.

CPD activities are organised either by the EAA itself,
the Government, trade associations or educational and
training institutions as endorsed by the Professional
Development Committee ("PDC"). Except those which
are within the scope of the PDC's endorsement as
specified in the Guidelines to the CPD Scheme, learning
activities have to be assessed by the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications ("HKCAAVQ").

Modes of learning include attending approved seminars
and multi-session training activities; participating in
web-based learning activities; teaching approved CPD
courses; and taking part in pro bono work. Generally,
one CPD point is awarded for each contact hour of
classroom or web-based learning activity.
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Achievement

T
&3

Licensees who achieved their CPD attainment targets
by earning 12 CPD points within a 12-month CPD
period would be awarded the CPD Attainment Symbols.
With effect from the CPD period commencing 1 October
2013 and ending 30 September 2014, premium CPD
Attainment Symbols are to be presented to those who
achieved their CPD attainment targets for three
consecutive CPD periods and five consecutive CPD
periods. That is, the first group of licensees who would
be presented with premium CPD Attainment Symbols
would be those who achieve the CPD attainment target
in three consecutive CPD periods ending 30 September
2014, 2015 and 2016. Holders of Statement of
Particulars of Business ("SPOB"] with over 80% of their
licensed employees (including the branch manager)
having achieved the CPD attainment target would be
presented with the CPD Mark for Estate Agencies.

RRE

Award

E—EEERREIFEEREBTENEDZE

SKEF5 A2 A

SEERXEBHERTRE
CPD Attainment Symbol

Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for one

CPD period

EEE=-AEEEREINFEREEEE TN
DERAEFA(B2013F1081HE20145F9 A30

B e & R R A T E)

Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for three

SEEXECHEEHEREE
—RE

Premium CPD Attainment Symbol
— Silver Symbol

consecutive CPD periods (with effect from the CPD
period commencing 1 October 2013 and ending 30

September 2014)

EEELELAERREIFEZXRLECTING FHEZXEEHIEURFES

DERMEFRA(E2013F108 1B E20149F9 A30

B AV (2 B R SA 5T &)

Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for five

—%E
Premium CPD Attainment Symbol
— Gold Symbol

consecutive CPD periods (with effect from the CPD
period commencing 1 October 2013 and ending 30

September 2014])

BN EEE (BRANTRE) ZIFEEXER
AEIMEN BRMEXRFBHASHAA

WERERMEREECRTEE
CPD Mark for Estate Agencies

Holders of SPOB with over 80% of licensed employees
(including the branch manager) having achieved the

CPD attainment target
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During the year, 409 sessions of CPD activities were
organised by various activity providers with 28,207
enrolments. A total of 59,695 CPD points were attained.
Among the 409 sessions held, 99 (24% of the total
number of sessions] were organised by the EAA with
17,408 enrolments (about 62% of total enrolments].
Compared to the previous year, the total number of
enrolments decreased by 15%, while the number of
enrolments of activities conducted by the EAA and
providers other than the EAA decreased by 7% and 26%
respectively.

Major activity providers, both from the trade and
educational institutions, reflected that licensees’ level
of participation in training activities was dropping.
Some scheduled training programmes have been
cancelled due to low attendance. In light of the difficult
business environment, licensees are facing challenges
to plan ahead their time to attend training activities as
they have to focus more on promoting their businesses,
particularly for sales of first-hand residential
properties which are usually launched at very short
notice. To address their difficulties, the EAA has
launched a number of e-Learning activities which could
be taken without time and geographical constraints.

FREBERARRBTVEHEEREEEE  W17408ANRKBH -
During the year, the EAA organised 99 sessions of CPD activities, which attracted 17,408 enrolments.
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CPD Activities Held in the Past Three Years
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Application for Endorsement of CPD Activities

To encourage the activity providers from the trade to
organise more training activities so as to boost CPD
participation, the PDC approved the expansion of the
scope and coverage of its endorsement to include
seminars organised by activity providers who have
more than five years’ experience in providing CPD
activities for the estate agency trade. With effect from 1
October 2014, qualified estate agency companies and
other training providers can submit details of their
seminars to the PDC directly for endorsement of their
activities to be recognised under the CPD Scheme,
rather than going through the assessment procedures
by HKCAAVQ.

Web-based Distance Learning

Web-based distance learning offers flexibility to
practitioners, particularly when they are facing
difficulties in attending face-to-face programmes. To
keep licensees motivated to participate in web-based
distance learning activities, starting from 1 October
2014, the cap of CPD points that can be earned by
undertaking web-based distance learning activities
over a 12-month CPD period has been removed.

The EAA hopes these measures would help widen
licensees’ choices of learning and keep up licensees’
momentum to strive for professional excellence
through life-long learning.

Special Stamp Duty, Buyer’s Stamp Duty and
Ad Valorem Stamp Duty

To draw licensees’ attention to the updated application
and computation of Special Stamp Duty, Buyer’'s Stamp
Duty and Ad Valorem Stamp Duty, representatives from
the Inland Revenue Department were invited to give
talks to the licensees on the topics. During the
seminars, EAA representatives also explained the
provisions of the new practice circulars (Circular No.
14-02(CR) and Circular No. 14-03(CR]) on the stamp
duties issued by the EAA during the year. Five seminars
were organised, attracting 916 enrolments (about 5%
of the total enrolments of EAA CPD activities).



-
L4

—FREEYEHE

EERENTMISEE  UINERE
AEC—FEEDEHE KO AR E
ERERE —TFTEEMEHENHNE
BECGRERFTI0-02CRIEBE &I
13-04(CR)) PT & 51| #5 5| WY IR % - 1E 73
EHE —FEEVEHEEERD
REAFEABRDESEHRPER
ARHBEMNEE -RAF BEERAK
FEMTEERYEHEKENE —FEE
YIERIESI oI BEERINERT
— AR BEE By E R IR HEE &
E—FEEWENESINEMBE
DADNRFERE AN ET L 0 IR AR - DA R B <7
S - P A BEENERLT
W3 7608 AR M (MEEE BIFE
HEREEEHMAZEARBZ%) o

oy
B

Sales of First-hand Residential Properties

The EAA organised two seminars to enhance licensees’
understanding of the Residential Properties (First-hand
Sales) Ordinance and the EAA’'s guidelines set out in
practice circulars (Circular No. 10-02 (CR) and Circular
No. 13-04(CR]) related to the sales of first-hand
residential properties. During the seminars, the
representative of the Sales of First-hand Residential
Properties Authority drew licensees’ attention to
various aspects in a sales brochure which deserved
special attention. At the same time, the EAA's
representative explained the EAA’s guidelines on the
promotion of first-hand residential properties.
Furthermore, the EAA organised three other seminars
on the EAA’s guidelines on estate agents’” promotion
and sale of first-hand residential properties in a bid to
enhance licensees’ understanding and compliance in
this respect. These five seminars were well received by
licensees, attracting 608 enrolments (about 3% of the
total enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

EEREBAE  BEHHBEARBTCLERBED) KW EBEM
The EAA helps licensees familiarise themselves with the EAQ, its subsidiary legislations, the Code of Ethics and practice circulars through

organising seminars.

(BT TADRAXBES -
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Estate Agents Ordinance, EAA Guidelines,
Legal and Practical Knowledge Relating to
Estate Agency Work

To help licensees familiarise themselves with the EAO,
its subsidiary legislations, the Code of Ethics and
practice circulars, the law and practice relating to
property transactions; and consolidate licensees’
practical skills and knowledge on the matters they
have to attend to during property transactions, 42
sessions of seminars were held on the subjects,
attracting 6,899 enrolments (about 40% of the total
enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

Professional Ethics

To promote integrity and ethical practices among
licensees, seminars were jointly organised by the EAA,
the Independent Commission Against Corruption
("ICAC"), the Narcotics Division of the Security Bureau
and the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit. During the
year, six seminars were held to brief licensees on
legislations in relation to anti-money laundering, ways
to identify and report suspicious cases, corruption
prevention measures and the subject provision of the
Best Practice Checklist published by the EAA and ICAC
in March 2012 regarding best practices for handling
property transactions, proper governance and internal
control, and effective human resources management.
406 licensees attended these seminars (about 2% of
the total enrolments of CPD activities).

Topical Issues

The EAA invited academics from tertiary institutions
and experts from professional bodies to brief licensees
on topical issues, with an aim to raise licensees’
general standards and awareness of the latest
developments of some subjects which might affect the
property market and estate agency work. During the
year, ten special topic seminars were organised
covering topics on unauthorised building works,
mortgages, town planning, land development, outline
zoning plan, change in land use, green building,
planning of residential property projects, inspection of
residential properties, and consumer behaviour and
services marketing strategy. These seminars were well
received by licensees with a total of 2,708 enrolments
(about 16% of the total enrolments of EAA CPD
activities).
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CPD Activities Held in the Past Three Years

e-Learning

Ever since the EAA launched the e-Quiz in 2005,
licensees are provided an alternative to broaden their
practical knowledge by undertaking online CPD
activities at anytime and anywhere. To further
accommodate the training needs of licensees and
enrich their online learning experience, the EAA
launched an e-Learning platform in 2012. During the
year, the EAA has developed a number of e-Learning
programmes. Also, a short-term incentive allowing
licensees to earn bonus CPD points through completion
of a certain number of EAA’s e-Learning programmes
within the CPD period from 1 October 2014 to 30
September 2015 was also introduced to encourage
participation of EAA’s e-Learning programmes. To
support licensees’ self-paced online learning, the EAA
will continue to develop more e-Learning programmes.

EEHE (BEEBE D)
No. of Activities (% of total activities)
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

(1) B/

Core/Non-core

L Core 389 (78%) 352 (79%) 305 (75%)

A Non-core 11 (22%) 93 (21%) 104 (25%)
(2) BS Language

= Cantonese 469 (94%) 414 (93%) 378 (92%)

KB English 14 (3%) 19 (5%) 24 (6%)

T Putonghua 11 (2%) 6 (1%) =

B (P EX) Bilingual (Chinese/English) 6 (1%) 6 (1%) 7 (2%)
(3) it 2 Location

BEEE Hong Kong Island 139 (28%) 153 (34%) 153 (37%)

N Kowloon 313 (63%) 246 (55%) 194 (47%)

#1 5 New Territories 42 (8%) 38 (9%) 48 (12%)

BLEE2E Web-based Distance Learning 6 (1%) 8 (2%) 14 (4%)

(fflgn - 48 EEZ le.g. e-Quizzes/e-Learning programmes)

mE/HLEEBEE)
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Reaching out to the Community
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WH 20153 AEME RATEERKR FREM -
The EAA has produced two new consumer
education videos which were launched on the
bus fleets of CityBus and New World First Bus
in March 2015.

93 HEREEER 2014/15FHK

Promotion of Consumer Information

The EAA believes that one of the most effective ways of
protecting consumers is to raise their awareness and
knowledge of the property market. Hence, in 2014/15,
the EAA continued to share with the public useful
information on its work and knowledge on property
transactions through various communication channels
and platforms.

The EAA jointly published a new booklet titled “Guide to
Purchasing Second-hand Residential Properties” with
the Consumer Council in April 2014. It aimed at

reminding consumers of the important points to note
when purchasing second-hand residential properties.
The booklet is available for collection at the offices of
the EAA and the Consumer Council, as well as all 20
Public Enquiry Service Centres ("PESC") of the Home
Affairs Department ("HAD").
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In addition, the EAA participated in career talks on the
estate agency trade organised by the Kowloon East
Service Centre and the Kowloon West Service Centre of
the Employees Retraining Board ("ERB”) in June and
August 2014 respectively. An introduction on licensing
requirements and qualifying examinations was
delivered to the attending ERB’s public members who
were interested in participating in the estate agency
trade with a positive response. The EAA also
participated in a recruitment fair held at the Olympian
City in September 2014. Exhibition booths were set up
with display panels and the EAA’s corporate video and
consumer educational videos were showcased. A talk
on the licensing regime and the Continuing
Professional Development Scheme were also delivered.
During the fair, over 200 visitors were reached and
about 480 copies of consumer booklets and corporate
information were distributed.

In 2014/15, the EAA has produced two new consumer
education videos titled “Appoint licensed estate agents
to avoid disputes” and “Fill in all the blanks in the
provisional agreement for sale and purchase before
signing to avoid loss”. Both videos are available on the
EAA’s website and the YouTube channel for the public’s
viewing, and were launched on the bus fleets of CityBus
and New World First Bus in March 2015. Two
corresponding consumer education leaflets were sent
to all 20 PESC of the HAD for public collection. In
addition, a bus body advertisement on the theme of
“Appoint licensed estate agents to avoid disputes” was
also launched from 6 March 2015 until 2 April 2015.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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To tie in with the launch of the above new educational
videos, a series of roving exhibitions were launched in
March 2015 at three shopping malls at Sunshine City in
Ma On Shan, Grand Waterfront Plaza in To Kwa Wan
and Island Resort Mall in Siu Sai Wan. A number of
consumer education videos including the two new ones
as mentioned above were played, and related leaflets
were available at the exhibition booths as well. About
1,300 visitors were reached and about 1,400 copies of
consumer booklets and corporate information were
distributed.

REAZMBBEEANEL ZERAFEZETRANESRTKERE -

To tie in with the launch of the new educational videos, a series of roving exhibitions were launched at different shopping malls in Hong Kong.
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Media Relations

To promote a better understanding from the public on
EAA’s initiatives, the EAA always keeps a close
connection with the media to publicise its work and
efforts. In 2014/15, the EAA issued 22 press releases
and held two press conferences on major initiatives
with wide media coverage. A total of 28 feature
interviews with the EAA Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer or senior management for print and electronic
media were also arranged. Through a number of media
gatherings, including luncheons, Chinese New Year
gathering with frontline journalists, as well as the mid-
year and year-end briefings, the EAA’s relationship with
the media was maintained and strengthened.
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The EAA frequently contributed articles on topics
relating to property transactions and expected services
of estate agents to the media. In 2014/15, the EAA
maintained three newspaper/online columns. A total of
26 articles were published in the free newspaper
am730; 15 articles were contributed to The Standard;
and 12 articles in the property website of Singtao and
its property column.

Liaisons with the Trade, the Government and
Other Bodies

The EAA believes that it is vital to maintain good
rapport with key stakeholders and trade
representatives, so as to garner their understanding
and support for the EAA’s work. Maintaining a regular
dialogue and two-way exchange with the estate agency
trade is one of the important elements of
communication. In 2014/15, the EAA held five liaison
meetings with the representatives of major trade
associations. At these meetings, the trade
representatives were consulted on the EAA's new
initiatives, and issues of mutual concern were

discussed. The trade was also briefed on the salient
points of draft practice circulars and the trade’s views
were noted.

RIEERZERIN B
RERBITHESE -

To enhance exchange with the trade, the

L EREHEEnE

EAA holds regular liaison meetings with
the representatives of trade associations.

EERETRAMERRFENESE
HAT R ERIBEZH G -

Focus group meetings are held in various
districts as a direct dialogue with frontline
practitioners.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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Encouraged by the positive feedback from participants,
the EAA continued to hold focus group meetings in
various districts as a direct dialogue with frontline
practitioners. At these meetings, the EAA shared with
the frontline practitioners new initiatives of the EAA
and discussed latest practice issues encountered by
the trade. The exchanges helped the EAA to formulate
practical policies and measures for the trade to follow.
In 2014/15, a total of four such meetings were held in
Tsuen Wan, Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui and Fanling
respectively.

From time to time, the EAA issued letters, reminders in
the format of email or SMS to licensees, or published
special notices on the EAA’s website to alert the trade
to certain requirements relating to the estate agency
practice or any new Government measures. In 2014/15,
a total of 19 such reminders/notices were issued. In
addition, four issues of EAA’s licensee newsletter,
Horizons, were published during the year to keep
licensees abreast of the EAA’s new regulatory
measures and latest activities. Members of the public
could also read the newsletter through the EAA’s
website.

With a view to facilitating the trade a better
communication and less misunderstanding with their
clients, and conveying useful information about
property transactions to consumers, the EAA sent a
“Consumer Education Package” to more than 6,000
estate agency shops in Hong Kong in August 2014. The
Package included a poster and stickers on the
importance of signing an estate agency agreement,
together with a disc containing a number of consumer
education videos. The EAA encouraged the trade to use
the Package at their shops to convey useful information
about property transactions to their clients.

In addition, a new consumer publication named “Enter
into the Estate Agency Trade” was also published in
August 2014, It targeted those interested in entering
the trade which included information on obtaining a
licence from the EAA.
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Throughout the year, the EAA also maintained close
liaisons with various stakeholders, Government
departments, statutory and professional bodies. In
particular, as the EAA is highly concerned about the
conduct of estate agents participating in the sale of
first-hand residential properties, we have maintained
close contact with the Sales of First-hand Residential
Properties Authority to keep each other informed of
useful information on the practices of estate agents in
the sale of first-hand residential properties.

The EAA also assisted the Standard Working Hours
Committee and the Labour Department in distributing
a questionnaire on the working hours’ situation to 3,000
randomly selected licensees in August 2074. In
addition, as mentioned above, the EAA has co-
published a booklet with the Consumer Council, issued
letters or published news about various Government
department's news or measures in the EAA’s website
or newsletter for the trade’'s information.

The EAA also had international exchanges with
different professional or trade bodies outside Hong
Kong, which helped promote the image of the EAA
internationally. During 2014/15, the EAA received
delegations from the Thai Real Estate Broker
Association from Thailand, a mainland law student
delegation from the Legal Education Fund Limited and
the Asian Real Estate Association of America from the
USA respectively. Views and regulatory experiences
were exchanged and shared during the meetings.
Participating guests showed a great interest in learning
the role and functions of the EAA and the regulatory
system of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2014/15
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY
HERIEEE R

(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Estate Agents
Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of the Estate Agents
Authority set out on pages 101 to 122, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of movements in reserves and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Estate Agents Authority’s Responsibility for
the Financial Statements

The Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Estate Agents Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Estate Agents Authority determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free fromm material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 12 of the
Estate Agents Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Estate Agents Authority’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Estate
Agents Authority, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Estate Agents Authority’s affairs as at
31 March 2015, and of its surplus and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 August 2015
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2015

WZHEERREMRE
&= =
HZE2015F3A3NMHIEFE

2015 2014
Ft &£ ATt BT
Notes HK$ HK$
WA Income
fe BR & Licence fees 5 72,580,410 74,381,155
EZH B Examination fees 6 5,903,150 5,854,900
B A Interest income 1,283,002 766,009
79,766,562 81,002,064
Z Expenditure
1% A0 B & Auditor’s remuneration 65,000 65,000
NEING Business trips — 5,471
NBHRERX Community education expenses 1,040,387 1,266,174
B AEREERAN I H Complaints, investigation and
disciplinary proceedings expenses 111,056 142,948
PERIBERE R E X CEPA scheme expenses 15,465 7,735
e Depreciation 1,477,559 1,358,302
EMBEERERBAER Equipment maintenance and
communication expenses 1,080,908 1,024,877
HMENREFES L Estate agent card expenses 111,710 123,280
IR & Insurance 1,176,641 1,106,160
HYE  BMEREREERE Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - 1,027
AEEE M Motor vehicle operating expenses (VA WAK] 152,396
i NEDSEEL 1T Office accommodation and related
expenses 2,330,152 2,100,226
KEHERS -t RIEF Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings 7,756,070 7,791,762
o & Postage 370,024 331,719
EN il B 32 B Printing and stationery 457,367 442,609
HERBKER Professional service fees 677,200 1,567,200
ANEBERNELEE Public relations and liaison 51,167 48,783
SELRES Publicity and advertising AVAI] 377,500
8 TR A Staff costs
— e RER — wages, salaries and
allowances 46,564,362 44,606,874
— BRIl 1 AR & — contributions to mandatory
provident fund scheme 1,351,152 1,157,668
EARGE Service fees for examinations 4,007,500 3,724,457
FIEE R X Training activity expenses 599,615 586,728
Hif X Other expenses YA WAAA 603,943
70,013,672 68,592,839
FREHREMEEWEMEE  Surplus and total comprehensive
income for the year 9,752,890 12,409,225

101 #EREEER 2014/155R
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Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2015

FERBEE Non-current assets
M - BIMRERE Property, plant and equipment 8
BEWE M ERMEZ  Deposit paid for acquisition of
EfEE property, plant and equipment 8
REEE Current assets
FEWBR X - RN RIE K& Debtors, prepayments and
e deposits
EHEFER Time deposits 9
RITEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 9
RENEE Current liabilities
FERBR R R EETIE B Creditors and accruals
B WA Deferred income 10
B U e AR R 3R 3R IR Licence application fees received 1
mEEEFE Net current assets

mEERMEEE

Total assets less current liabilities

R

Reserves

HNEI0NE1228 2 BB HREK 2015
BEEKEIEN
RETE  WHIATRRES

FQRAAEES

R K ¥
EE

B
T A8

by:

William LEUNG Wing-cheung

Chairman
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2014
AT
HK$

2,187,392 3,186,589

2,385,487 1,390,887

4,572,879 4,577,476

2,882,186 2,447,255
76,154,121 =
(kyacyyaATAN 701,498,008

AU XY 203,945,263

8,938,743 8,948,933
54,731,226 52,339,819
4,023,931 3,744,137

67,693,900 65,032,889
(ZARYVRIANN 138,912,374
(xR A 143,489,850

(X Zy R A 143,489,850

The financial statements on pages 101 to 122 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Members of the Estate Agents
Authority on 25 August 2015 and are signed on their behalf

Ruby HON
Chief Executive Officer
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HREEHR Statement of Movements in Reserves
B E2015F3A3IBIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
% 7 =
PHEf#E BEEEE RERE et
Litigation Capital
equalisation project Cumulative
reserve fund fund Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
MR2013F 4 A1 H At 1 April 2013 9,750,000 76,480,708 44,849,917 131,080,625
FRRH Surplus for the year — — 12409225 12,409,225
B 5 FA T3 17 56 4 0 1 Transfer from litigation
equalisation reserve (9,750,000] — 9,750,000 —
ERFEFERBEEES Transfer to capital project
fund — 18,994,155  (18,994,155) =
M2014F3 318 &k At 31 March 2014 and
20144 H1H 1 April 2014 — 95,474,863 48,014,987 143,489,850
FANRER Surplus for the year — — 9,752,890 9,752,890
ERFZFELRBEEES Transfer to capital project
fund — 8,758,307 (8,758,307) =
20153 H31H At 31 March 2015 — 104,233,170 49,009,570 153,242,740

R ERESAANEEERHN
FETRERELFZESHEL LF -
Sk A BT £ 52 B E RE AT S| BUAY AR AARK
K-BEERBFEMNRERERET
BRRAEFDGEREE S HFR
HEREEEFRBEERERE -

BEREEETAANAXNEREESE
PRZENERBREKRAE EEREF
eHNEERERETEENEAZER
HRES AAEANHBESBRX
HERMEME -

M2015F3A31H EARABERES &
HBPEFELEIEHRAIREEE KAN
N = H) FXIE 98,048,170 7T (20144 -

AN,

89,289,863/ L) °

103 #EREEER 2014/155FR

The litigation equalisation reserve caters for the cost of
litigation arising from some of the Estate Agents Authority’s
decisions being appealed to the Appeal Panel or challenged
in court. A transfer will be made from the cumulative fund to
the litigation equalisation reserve or from the litigation
equalisation reserve to the cumulative fund at the discretion
of the Estate Agents Authority ("EAA").

Capital project fund caters for the cost of capital projects, as
approved by the EAA. Transfers will be made from the
cumulative fund to the capital project fund or from the capital
project fund to the cumulative fund at the discretion of the
EAA.

Capital project fund balance at 31 March 2015 included an
amount of HK$98,048,170 (2014: HK$89,289,863] which
represents funds for the possible acquisition of permanent
office accommodation in future.
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BERERXR Statement of Cash Flows
B E2015F3A3TBIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$ HK$
EEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FRN AR Surplus for the year 9,752,890 12,409,225
MRS EEL R Adjustments for:

FLE WA Interest income (1,283,002) (766,009)

e Depreciation 1,477,559 1,358,302

THEYE BUAREIEE Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 1,027
LEBEECEHAI cEEHEMRE  Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital 9,947,447 13,002,545
JEUBRFX ~ AN I Rk ® (Increase) decrease in debtors,

(3% 0) Rk prepayments and deposits (298,656) 374,056

FEMBEERKRIETTEE O )0 (Decrease) increase in creditors and

accruals (10,190) 910,355
IEZE U A E 40 CRl ) Increase (decrease) in deferred income 2,391,407 (683,753)
B Uk b8 BR B 55 FR IR 8 0 CRk 2) Increase (decrease) in licence

applications received 279,794 (477,327)
LIBEEMEHRESFE NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 12,309,802 13,125,876
BREEY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FETEHEX Placement of time deposits (76,154,121) —
BEWME SMERE Purchase of property, plant and

equipment (478,362) (1,256,577)
BEME BMEREZ Deposit paid for acquisition of property,

A &0 plant and equipment (994,600) (1,390,887)
RPN Interest received 1,146,727 747,069
BRREZIHAKE Redemption on held-to-maturity

investment 2,029,742
BRERS(FTA) SRS FH NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES (76,480,356) 129,347
BekBeEEMORLD) NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

bllIp=-R-E] AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (64,170,554) 13,255,223

FNBReRBASZED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 201,498,008 188,242,785
FHRNBeRBASZEEYD CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR 137,327,454 201,498,008
RekReSEWERDIT: ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
RITHEKRERS Bank balances and cash KyARYYNATAN 001,498,008
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

—RER

HWERBEER(EER] RE
R 19974E5 B 29 B 8 B E R
BARBIYAK Y - E = BB AL AR
EHERENZEERST B
XEMBEKE REBHER
BERB EERMNEMBEEK
FTELEEWBARTBETERK
BRAMAPLLEIE -

AP BHRERABITZY] > MABTT
REREERMNINEER -

RAFE EERBEXRERUAT
HEEGITMAGRMI(ER
M5S£ RIMERT had kg

AR HEmEERFEI09
F12HRRBEAEFERFE 275,
CEHEN)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

BB EAEIR (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 32

BB ERFI65 (IBFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 36

BB EAEI9HR (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 39

BE(BEEMEHREREZES)
—REE 215
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

105 #HEREBEER 20141553k

General

The EAA was established with the principal functions of
promoting integrity and competence of estate agents
and issuing estate agents’ licences under the Estate
Agents Ordinance dated 29 May 1997 (date of
enactment). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the EAA is 48th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the EAA.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

The EAA has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs and interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”)
for the first time in the current year.

REE®
Investment Entities

TMEENTRAEBIAH

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

eMEENKODERE IHEE
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

TETAZERREDEHEZEE
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

BE

Levies
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FERF]I REET2E 2. Application of New and Revised Hong
i & 2 Al o) Kong Financial Reporting Standards
[ HKFRSS"] (Continued)

RAFEERERANEEEAVERS The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and
ERZ BT R2EHMEHRERTD interpretation in the current year has had no material
FEneB R SmEcHE effect on the amounts reported and/or disclosures set
BRI MEKERNTE - out in the financial statements.
EERWKRIEEFERA T E BM The EAA has not early applied the following new and
BEHRARERFT NEERI(CE revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
BB HmEERD effective.
BBV BHEERFE IR TETAS
HKFRS ¢ Financial Instruments®
BB EERFE 145 EERELER,
HKERS 14 Requlatory Deferral Accounts®
BB S LERIF 1555 RKEBEFPEAHBBA®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
B G EAZE 15K (BFTAN) Rt E°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
BB ERF165 K FE 38R BEMERBHNTESHE

(BET )

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

EE G ERFE 165 MFELIHR B¥ EEUEEY
(17T A)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plant®

HFEgsERFE 195 BT A) FERMNETE - EEHK

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employees Contributions'

HE gt ERE 275 BRI A) BY B HmR 2 EmE

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®

B BHREERNEI0H K REFHHEBMESAECREZLHANBEEL S TR’
FE gt ERIE 285 (B A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture®

ERUBRELENEI05 - F125% REER  RREAEH°

KEE G ERIE 285 (BETA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation

and HKAS 28 Exception®
BB mEERIE 5% (BFTA) WERRZERSENGHE
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint

Operations®
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BB EREER (BETA)
Amendments to HKFRSs

BB EREER (BETA)
Amendments to HKFRSs

BB EREER (BETA)
Amendments to HKFRSs

M2014F7R1B k2B AR 2 5T M AR -
2 R4 F7TRA 1Rz EMABRZ ST R AR
D EBIIME SLBRSN o
M2016F1 A1 B 2% FRIA 2 S5 IR AR -
M2016F1 A1 B2 &FB 2 &M FETBR
REM -
> R2M7TF1AIHR BRI SRR EK -
¢ R2018F 1A 1Bz &FAB S R AER -

EERRIEMEANET REERT
CEEMBGRERN CBERE
EH G YRR T e %
EERNEENMTBIREKE
REE -
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ZE& 2

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
[ HKFRSS”] (Continued)

2010 = 20126 8 1 & 7 B 75 o o5 22 Al 2 F R BAOE?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

20ME2013FERABTRMBRE LN 2 FREUHE'
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle'

2012E 2014 B EF B W d 2R 2 FREBE®
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 with
limited exceptions.
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Effective for first annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016.
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The EAA is in the process of assessing the potential
impact and anticipates that the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the EAA.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis and in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA
and the Estate Agents Ordinance. The significant
accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Revenue recognition

Income from issuing licences is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the licence.

Income from examinations is recognised on the date of
the examination.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that economic benefits will flow into
the EAA and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and deprecation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the EAA reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the EAA estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the statement of financial position when the EAA
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The EAA's financial assets are classified as loan and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts] through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors,
time deposits and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment on financial assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, subsequently, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the EAA’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, and observable changes in local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definition of a financial liability.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
on received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts] through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The EAA derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the EAA neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the EAA continues to recognise the asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the EAA retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the EAA continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

The EAA derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the EAA’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial Lliability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees.

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee benefits — provident fund obligations

The EAA operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered
fund. Both the EAA and the employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (2014: HK$1,250) per employee
per month. The EAA’s contributions to the MPF scheme
are expensed as incurred.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the EAA’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management had made
the following judgments that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts of
debtors

Debtors are measured at initial recognition at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining individual allowances, the EAA has
considered that detailed procedures have been in place
to monitor this risk. In determining whether allowance
for bad and doubtful debts is required, the EAA takes
into consideration the aging status, the likelihood of
collection and the estimated discounted future cash
flows. Specific allowance is made for debtors that are
unlikely to be collected. If the financial conditions of
these debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
allowances may be required.
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5. BHRE 5. Licence Fees
2015 2014
T B IT
HK$ HK$
FRER B AU A Total licence fees 72,580,410 74,381,155
6. ZHE 6. Examination Fee
2015 2014
B JT BT
HK$ HK$

WERENLEXBEEKRES  Estate agents and salespersons

qualifying examinations 5,854,900
7. BiE 7. Taxation
BIBCR GO E87IE  BEB B The EAA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under
ERDHANBENEH - section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

WEREEER 2014/155F®
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8. Y¥ - -BWMEHME B 8. Property, Plant and Equipment/Deposit
BEYX smMEkERFELZ Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant
EfNEZEE and Equipment

HEYERE RE BGRREE B A%
Leasehold Motor Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Equipment Total
o BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

%S cosT

201354 A1 H At 1 April 2013 4,210,236 557,264 1,759,189 9,875,232 16,401,921

wNE Additions 355,217 — 52,990 848,370 1,256,577

F8H Disposals - — (36,485) (252,463) (288,948)

201443 A31H At 31 March 2014 4,565,453 557,264 1,775,694 10,471,139 17,369,550

RE Additions = = 14,450 463,912 478,362

it 58 Disposals — — (22,237) (37,084) (59,321)

201543 A31H At 31 March 2015 4,565,453 557,264 1,767,907 10,897,967 17,788,591

e DEPRECIATION

M2013F4A1H At 1 April 2013 3,682,403 255,610 1,578,428 7,596,139 13,112,580

FANEE Provided for the year 298,675 163,102 53,534 842,991 1,358,302

it 85 Eliminated on disposals — — (36,485) (251,436) (287,921)

201453 A318 At 31 March 2014 3,981,078 418,712 1,595,477 8,187,694 14,182,961

FRNEE Provided for the year 369,079 136,796 54,583 917,101 1,477,559

2 Eliminated on disposals — — (22,237) (37,084) (59,321)

M201543 A31H At 31 March 2015 4,350,157 555,508 1,627,823 9,067,711 15,601,199

R H (B NET BOOK VALUES

201543 A31H At 31 March 2015 215,296 1,756 140,084 1,830,256 2,187,392

201443 A31H At 31 March 2014 584,375 138,552 180,217 2,283,445 3,186,589

WE B RRETEDRER
AAERFHAERERATEEX
5 AR A

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:
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RMREE 20%
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Property, Plant and Equipment/Deposit
Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant
and Equipment (continued)

Leasehold 20% or over the period of
improvements the lease term if it is less
than 5 years
Motor vehicles 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Equipment 20% to 30%

During the year, the EAA paid a deposit amounting to
HK$994,600 for the development of an integrated
management information system. The total
consideration for the system was HK$5,866,587 and the
total deposit paid at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$2,385,487 (2014: HK$1,390,887).

Bank Balances and Cash and Time
Deposits

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the EAA
and short-term bank deposits with a maturity of 90 to 92
days (2014: 90 to 92 days) at prevailing market interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.00% per annum (2014: 0.01%
to 0.58% per annum).

Time deposits comprise six-month bank deposits with a
maturity of 181 to 185 days (2014: Nil] at prevailing
market interest rates ranging from 0.50% to 0.70% per
annum (2014: Nil).

The EAA considers that the carrying amounts of these
assets approximate their fair values.
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10. IEE WA 10. Deferred Income
JRAEU A T FE iﬁg%ﬁﬁﬁjﬁgﬁ =] Deferred income represents licence fees received from
WHBRZIERE  REERH estate agents for a validity period, which are deferred
WA TER B R AEIRIE R IR according to the EAA’s income recognition policy.

M. WEREBFERIE 11. Licence Application Fees Received
ZEFIENIEENREERBR These represent amounts paid by estate agents applying
R —HER2RIE HERA for the licences which were still being processed but not
E%EIE’\\%# HDFERIER - yet approved at the end of the reporting period.

12. EARFAIE 12. Capital Commitments

2015 2014
B TT B TT
HK$ HK$

MEBEWH BV ARMEZ  Capital expenditure in respect of

BARRX

EREERETLD

BRI ERETHHRERT
&

the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment:

— authorized but not contracted
for in the financial
statements

— contracted but not provided in
the financial statements
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13.

14.

REHERIE

REER EEREEAEFZ
TAIMEE 2 I EHE - RN
Mz AREEHEREBEAER
T

13.

Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the EAA had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises which fall due as follows:

—FR
F_EFLF(BREERF)

2015 2014

BT BT

HK$ HK$

Within one year 8,143,836
In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,750,571
12,894,407

REMEFEDEERMERA
=EERENzEc - -HERES
FHE=FQ014: ZF)&FE —

S
IN °

EXERER

EERMNEARTEZRRBHEKIL
ARPTEEO R HERER
MENEERAREEREFEL
2o NREFAMERENZERT
REFEKTF -

EEREHRRMUEEELEAR
B URREEREXRENES
NEEBREATRK - BEERY
EENBHRETTEIRBR A
BRSKYBARERE  NEN
AKREENTE L WERESF
BRAEERBMNERE -

EERTHRIEMERENR
T RREEDALERL -
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14.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the EAA for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for and rentals are fixed for an average term
of three years (2014: three years).

Capital Risk Management

The EAA’'s capital comprises primarily the fund
accumulated since its incorporation and its objective
when managing capital is to ensure that the EAA will be
able to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to promote integrity and competence of estate
agents.

The EAA regularly reviews and manages its capital to
ensure adequacy for both the operational and capital
needs. The EAA operates a zero distribution policy with
regard to surpluses generated. All surpluses are
transferred to the cumulative fund for future operational
needs. The EAA charges an annual licence fees on the
estate agent.

The EAA regularly reviews the need to increase licence
fees to ensure operational needs are fully covered.
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15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. =HEITAHES a. Categories of financial instruments
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$ HK$
TREE Financial assets:
,l AR EWHIE(BHEIRE X Loans and receivables (including
BE&EEY) cash and cash equivalents]) AL VAL 203,560,078
TRAE: Financial liabilities:
i) DN Amortised costs 8,756,984 8,437,349
b. 2HEMREEHER K b. Financial risk management objectives and
® policies

ETERZEFEsRmI AR
JEUWER - EEAF R SR1T
HRRRENERRKRERE
BE-ZEemMITAFBRE
MaEEZR -ZEemIAY
R e IE TSR R (’7
%ﬂfﬂ ) =ER B &
mEE & o JA1a] R, %M
=N E’]Eﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁ’\TX
IEJE?IE&EQTZ—?EZ%J—L@
AR A] R B o B U B b
B -

=

The EAA’s major financial instruments include
debtors, time deposits, bank balances and creditors
and accruals. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (including interest rate risk], credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented in
timely and effective manner.
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15 €@l T B 15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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Market risk

Cash flow interest rate risk

The EAA is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest
bearing financial assets. Interest bearing financial
assets are mainly balances with banks which are
all short term in nature. Therefore, any future
variation in interest rates will not have a significant
impact on the results of the EAA.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the EAA. The EAA’s exposure of
its counterparties are continuously monitored,
received and approved.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the EAA
reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the EAA
considers that the EAA’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on time deposits and liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the management of the EAA, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the EAA’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The management of
the EAA manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and continuously monitors the
forecast and actual cash flows.
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15 €@ T B @) 15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TMEE E & Liquidity tables
TEREINEERIFEITES The following tables detail the EAA’s remaining
BmEECH TNTEHNIEA - contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
ZRDIBEBEEERAHEK liabilities on the agreed repayment terms. The
xNemBBEZRFHER tables have been drawn up based on the
R URBERBE A undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
WIHERE - based on the earliest date on which the EAA can be
required to pay.
InREF 15 RERBES
BEFE%S 0ZE30X 31F60X BB BREE
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest undiscounted Carrying
rate 0-30days 31-60days cash flows amount
BT BT BT BT
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
20154 2015
JEMBRF N FEETIE B Creditors and accruals — 8,225,207 531,777 8,756,984 8,756,984
20145 2014
B BRFX M FEETIEE Creditors and accruals — 7,733,385 703,964 8,437,349 8,437,349
c. RAFEHE c. Fair values
tMmEENERABEZAF The fair values of financial assets and financial
BE DRBEEEEMZTE liabilities are determined in accordance with
EERX RUBRBAERED generally accepted pricing models based on
MERE - discounted cash flow analysis.
EERRE RUHBHMERIZ The EAA considers that the carrying amounts of
BEKEAARNEREEK financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
TRABECEREBEREREAY amortised cost in the financial statements
BEEE - approximate their corresponding fair values.
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Appendix I: Standing Committees and
Working Panel of the EAA
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Terms of reference:

1.

To consider strategic issues of long-term
significance, in preparation for consideration by
the Board.

To examine issues of major financial significance,
in particular, staff cost implications, budgetary
matters, long-term financial planning and asset
management, and to make recommendations to
the Board for consideration.

To oversee human resources management and to
review and approve establishment structure,
reorganisation, manpower planning and
development of human resources policies and
procedures.

To examine issues of major significance in human
resources management, in particular, the pay
structure, remuneration and allowance policies
and terms and conditions of employment of the
EAA employees [including the Chief Executive
Officer and Directors]), and to make
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

At the direction of the Chairman, to review and
evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive
Officer and Directors for the purpose of
confirmation of appointment, extension of
probation, promotion, dismissal, termination or
renewal of employment or other employment
related issues and the granting of any
performance-linked awards, and to make
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

To review and endorse the annual work plan and
budget prepared by the Administration and to
recommend the same to the Board for
consideration.

To devise guidelines for and make recommendations
to the Board on the investment of the EAA monies.
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BB (20145F4 A 1H £2014F10531H):

@

To monitor trade and community response to the

EAA regulations and policies and, on such basis,
recommend appropriate actions to the Board and/
or the standing committees for consideration.

9. To perform such other tasks as the Board may
from time to time delegate.

10. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service
relating to the exercise of the Committee’s
functions and powers as and when the Committee
considers necessary.

Membership (1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014):

FE: PREBEL T » sBs P Chairman: Ms Vivien CHAN, sgs, Jp
B8 : R XFESHE BB P Members:  Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, 8ss, Jp

/Nt

Dr Saimond IP

2IFRBER - e

Sr Serena LAU Sze-wan, Jp

ZTEHBZEE  ses P

Prof the Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, sBs, Jp

BERLZL p

Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, Jp

AEESRLE Mr Alexander LUI Yiu-wah

hRESLSE Mr NG King-wah

BEEMBAL L Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han

RESHL Miss Melissa WU
BRhEEREAMER Permanent Secretary for Transport &
(BE)sHRE Housing (Housing) or his representative

B E (201411516 £2015463531H):

Membership (1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015]):

FFE ZRSKFE ST A 0 BBRS (P Chairman: Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, 88s, Jp
KB BRBELE Members:  Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
REISHEAE - P Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, Jp
24 T 8 = B Sr LAU Chun-kong
BERRZLp Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, sp
HEMBEL L Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
REDSL T Miss Melissa WU
REELE  »p Mr YU Wai-wai, Jp
BEHLEFEREANMER Permanent Secretary for Transport &
(FE)KHERE Housing (Housing) or his representative
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Terms of reference:

1.

4.

To draw up guidelines and procedures to ensure
consistency and fairness in handling disciplinary
cases.

To receive, consider and inquire into complaints
as mentioned in section 29(1) of the Estate Agents
Ordinance ("EAQ") and submissions by the Chief
Executive Officer as mentioned in section 29(2) of
the EAQ that are referred by the EAA to the
Committee, and to conduct such inquiry as the
Committee may think fit after having considered
such complaints and submissions.

To receive and inquire into complaints lodged
against licensed estate agents or salespersons for
breaches of the Code of Ethics, Practice Circulars
or guidelines issued to the trade from time to time
by the EAA.

To consider the reports and recommendations of
the investigator appointed by the EAA under
section 28 of the EAQ, with referral by the Section
28 Investigation Panel, to look into suspected and
alleged breaches or non-compliance of the
provisions of the EAO and to conduct such inquiry
as the Committee may think fit after having
considered such reports and recommendations.

To exercise any of the disciplinary powers provided
under section 30 of the EAO as the Committee
considers appropriate.

To attach to licences such conditions as the
Committee may consider appropriate.

To refer from time to time cases of malpractice or
complaints considered by the Committee to other
committees for formulation and/or revision of
policies, practice or regulations for better
discharge of the EAA’s functions.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service
relating to the exercise of the Committee’s
functions and powers as and when the Committee
considers necessary.
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B E (20145F 4515 Z2014F 105315 ):

Membership (1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014):

TR BEERxTL - Chairman: Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, Jp
KRB BREBELE Members:  Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
B E R E IR Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
o Bl 9 5 & Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, jp
EkEL L Ms Cynthia CHUNG Wing-suet
ES /N A Dr Saimond IP
AT HE Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
2R OT R = Em Sr LAU Chun-kong
Rkt Mr LEE King-leong
BEESLL Mr LIU Che-ning
BB E LA Mr Alexander LUI Yiu-wah
RESLL Miss Melissa WU
RBRETE Mr YU Wai-wali, Jp
ZHEKE : Board-appointed Members:

PR DS 0 MH

Mr CHAN Siu-tong, MH

RRELE

Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok

[E'& #£ 5 & © posM

Mr Sidney CHAU Foo-cheong, posm

REY Xt Ms Winnie CHEUNG Lai-chun
REEHE S E Mr Antonio CHU Lok-sang

k E B 5t A4 Mr U Ting-kwok

TEBLZ+ Ms Doreen KONG Yuk-foon
M4+ Ms Phyllis M.K. LAM

RERE T E Mr Johnny LEUNG Ka-kui
a2 % 4 Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai

T BARSE Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king

=Y YL A 0 0BE QPM (CPM

Mr WONG Tsan-kwong, 0BE, QPM, CPM
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Appendix I: Standing Committees and
Working Panel of the EAA

B (201411 515 £2015463H31H):  Membership [1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015):

TRE BEELL p Chairman: Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-Lling, Jp

B A EABELL Members: Ms Jane Curzon LO
BMEFEAE Bes P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, B8s, Jp
wif B 48 5t & Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai
REFELLT Ms Maggie TSUI Yeuk-ting
T B E Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
BERBELE Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu
REDSL T Miss Melissa WU
RIAEF L+ Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong

ZEKE : Board-appointed Members:
PRI E LA Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok
RER XL Ms Winnie CHEUNG Lai-chun
TEBLZ T+ Ms Doreen KONG Yuk-foon
Eip) e Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
RETMH L Mr Alex LAl Sze-wai
FHEEL L Ms Sylvia LEE
BEREE Mr LIU Chi-ming
ERawL Ms Jessica YIP Mo-ching

127 #HEREEER 20141553



-~

. ¢ J

3 s

%

BEEE

1. MELEFHEREBEEXEZ
BEIRIRTE -

2. MRALKEBEREEBALTEES
TE R AR o

3. EBIREERTHIMEEMER
E%u$| HRBH%EI"]EEHH Imf—f
BEBEENRBAZTHNER
BRER CEFBHRBPE -

4. %&ﬁ%x%?ﬂz#ﬁﬁﬁ/%i
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5. 1TEERMITCHERBKED)F
17 ~ 23~ 24 ~ 25 R 271§ e Kb EE AR
B (M) EANEMEETREES B
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BERE 2WEIRE -

8. MRAMBITHEBEMEEEFENEK
& K X o

9. WNREFTE RLTESTHEHER

REMENEREREN HEXE
RS -

£ >
r r
Terms of reference:
1. To consider and recommend licensing

requirements for estate agents and salespersons.

To consider and recommend the criteria for
exemption from the licensing requirements for
any particular class of persons.

To instruct the EAA Administration to process
applications for licences/statements of particulars
of business (SPOBs) and to grant or renew such
licences/SPOBs to applicants meeting the
licensing requirements.

To consider and if thought appropriate, to approve
or refuse applications for licences/SPOBs brought
before the Committee.

To exercise and perform any and such of the
EAA’s functions and powers under sections 17, 23,
24, 25 and 27 of the Estate Agents Ordinance and
section 9 of the Estate Agents (Licensing)
Regulation.

To set policies relating to licensing matters.

To review and make recommendation on the scale
of licence fees and charges for services provided
by the EAA.

To consider and design the relevant forms and
related documents pertaining to licensing matters.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service
relating to the exercise of the Committee’s
functions and powers as and when the Committee
considers necessary.
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Appendix I: Standing Committees and
Working Panel of the EAA

B E (20145F 4515 £2014F 105315 ):

Membership (1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014):

FE 2IFRBER/ - e

Chairman: Sr Serena LAU Sze-wan, Jp

RE:  PEEHEE

Members: Professor CHAU Kwong-wing

REISHEAE - P

Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, Jp

E 3N A

Dr Saimond IP

2= TR 28

Sr LAU Chun-kong

T BEE  sBs P

Prof the Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, sBs, Jp

ZEKE : Board-appointed Members:
BEBRZTCEESE Miss Vera TAM Sau-ngor (representative
ZEEgRK) of Consumer Council)
REBERE Mr Alex YU Ka-ki

B8 (2014F11 518 £20153H31H):

TFE: BURTAIEAD

Membership (1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015):

Chairman: Sr LAU Chun-kong

RE:  BREHE

Members: Professor CHAU Kwong-wing

EAELL Ms Jane Curzon LO
it IIB 12 5t £ Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai
REFELLT Ms Maggie TSUI Yeuk-ting
mRBEE Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu
RIEF X+ Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong

ZEKE : Board-appointed Members:
REELXLTCHBE Ms Winnie CHEUNG Yuk-wan
ZEgNKK) (representative of Consumer Council
BERTE Mr LIU Chi-ming

B R E A

Sr Keith SIU Leung-hung
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Terms of reference:

1.

To draw up, review and revise code(s) of ethics
governing the conduct and practice of the estate
agency trade.

To review and make recommendation on the
regulations under the EAQ relating to the practice
and operation of estate agents.

To consider and review practices within the trade
and prepare or consider Practice Circulars or
other guidelines on various aspects of estate
agency work from time to time.

To monitor compliance of the EAO and its
subsidiary legislations, code(s] of ethics, Practice
Circulars or other guidelines; and to liaise with
the trade on ways to improve the standard of
practice and quality of service.

To determine the syllabi and fees for the qualifying
examinations for estate agents and salespersons.

To set the parameters for the administration of
the qualifying examinations.

To oversee and give direction to the EAA
Administration in the setting and moderation of
examination questions and determination of
penalties for breaches of examination regulations
by candidates.

To review and determine the pass marks and
commendation marks for the qualifying
examinations and, where appropriate, those for
each part thereof.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service
relating to the exercise of the Committee’s
functions and powers as and when the Committee
considers necessary.
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Appendix I: Standing Committees and

Working Panel of the EAA

B E (2014545 1H 220144105315 ):

Membership (1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014):

131

EE: ZESKFE ST A 0 BBRS (P Chairman:  MrWilliam LEUNG Wing-cheung, Bss, Jp
BER: mRELL Vice-chairman: Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
B BREBELE Members: ~ Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
B E R H X Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
EkE L+ Ms Cynthia CHUNG Wing-suet
AT HE Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
FRIEE Mr LEE King-leong
RESLLE Mr NG King-wah
REELE P Mr YU Wai-wai, Jp
BHLFEREANMER Permanent Secretary for Transport
(FE)KHERE & Housing (Housing] or his representative
LZEKE - Board-appointed Members:
EimErt Mr FU Tak-wah
REFL L Ms Jasmine NG Chi-ping
BERFRL L Miss Angela WONG Ching-yi
AR ST Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
=S L Ir Dr Stanley K.C. WONG

WENEEER 2014/15F®
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Membership [1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015):

FE REIS LA - op Chairman: Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, jp
BlER: mRELL Vice-chairman: Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
KB BREBELE Members:  Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
BERE IR Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
BEERE Mr LIU Che-ning
‘mILEL L Ms Jane Curzon LO
FIETFT A  BBS P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, B8s, Jp
i 848 5t 4 Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai
EBARSE Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
|mIIBEA Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu
RHEF KL Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
BRhEEREAMER Permanent Secretary for Transport
(BE)SERE & Housing (Housing) or his representative
ZEKE : Board-appointed Members:
PR ok ¢ 5 A Mr Louis CHAN Wing-kit
FEKEE Mr Richard LEE Chi-shing
FRITEE Mr LEE King-leong
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Appendix I: Standlng Committees and

Working Panel of the EAA

BEHE

1. MEEANBIFTE  XRFTE 1.
HEREIRE  URAFEAD
B EKF o

2. E= *X‘Hi BEXEER
B

APEIImEB 2

a. TEHmF
FEK

FAREMER @B

b. Mo EZLKIEZLER
EENRFE 5

c. EUKAZIXECEHNE
MEBELRIEFETERER
K

d. MEMIEXRAMTENS
EREEXEEERYMAR

ERNFETLE LA
&

e ERHETEEEHBOR
WorMEEREERER
BE

3. ?¢E¥Z/)|L/E§bhf/\uﬁ IS 3.
EMEREBEENEXERERS
%HE’J%?HT‘)
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NITEEBEMNENERE A
RERENR S BHEER -
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Terms of reference:

To examine the training needs and design
appropriate training programmes to raise the
competence of licensees.

To oversee the implementation of the Continuing
Professional Development ("CPD") Scheme
including:

a. conducting periodic reviews on its focus,
scope and requirements;

b. determining guidelines for assigning core
and non-core activities;

c. approving CPD activity providers and
evaluating CPD activities;

d. adopting appropriate CPD activities of other
professions and trades into the CPD Scheme
of the EAA; and

e. monitoring the effectiveness of the CPD
Scheme and making recommendations to the
Board as appropriate.

To advise on professional exchange activities and
monitor the administration of scheme(s] relating
to reciprocal recognition of professional
qualifications for the estate agency trade.

To obtain such legal and/or expert advice as the
Committee may consider necessary for or in
relation to the proper discharge and exercise of
the Committee’s functions and powers.
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B E (20145F 4515 Z2014F 105315 ):

Membership (1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014):

TR ERERAE Chairman: Mr NG King-wah
KB : RIS AE - p Members: Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, Jp
KA Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
RekAE Mr LEE King-leong
BEERE Mr LIU Che-ning
REBRETE  p Mr YU Wai-wali, Jp
BRahEEREAMER Permanent Secretary for Transport &
(BE)HERE Housing (Housing) or his representative
ZHEKE : Board-appointed Members:
TFELSE Mr LEE Chi-wah
BERTE Mr LIU Chi-ming
BBt Miss Caroline YEUNG Choi-fung
REBEEL Dr Horace YUEN Hoi-sing

BEIRBRE

Representative of the Vocational
Training Council

FE (2014F1151H £20153H31H):

Membership (1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015):

TR REEREEEp Chairman: Mr YU Wai-wai, Jp
KB BEELELE Members: Mr LIU Che-ning
FIETF A  BBS P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, B8s, Jp
REFELt Ms Maggie TSUI Yeuk-ting
S B S & Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
BHLFEEREAWEER Permanent Secretary for Transport and
(BE)RHERE Housing (Housing) or his representative
ZEKE - Board-appointed Members:
AT A Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
FTERLE Mr LEE Chi-wah
mERA T Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
REBEH L Dr Horace YUEN Hoi-sing

BERIKBRE

Representative of the Vocational
Training Council
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Terms of reference:
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To formulate guidelines for and procedures on the
selection of cases for investigation under section
28 of the EAO.

To oversee the conduct of investigation under
section 28 of the EAO to ensure its full compliance.

To receive and consider reports and
recommendations from the EAA Administration on
suspected or alleged cases of breaches or non-
compliance of a requirement(s] or other
provision(s) of the EAO warranting investigation
under section 28 of the EAO.

To appoint investigator(s] under section 28 of the
EAO to conduct such investigation and carry out
such duties as the Panel considers necessary.

To receive and consider the reports and
recommendations from the investigator appointed
by the Panel under section 28 of the EAO.

Where the investigator recommends to the Panel
that the exercise of disciplinary powers under
section 30 of the EAO should be considered, to
refer the case to the Disciplinary Committee for
its consideration.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service
relating to the exercise of the EAA’s functions and
powers as prescribed by section 28 of the EAQO as
and when the Panel considers necessary.

To exercise and perform any and such of the

EAA’s functions and powers as prescribed by
section 28 of the EAQ.

Not a standing committee, meet as and when needed
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B (201445 1H £20144F10531H):  Membership [1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014):

FE 2UFrE B =R P Chairman: Sr Serena LAU Sze-wan, jp
K8 : ZEIBEE  sBs P Members:  Prof the Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, sBs, Jp
hRELE Mr NG King-wah

BB (201411 51H £201543531H).  Membership (1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015):

FE PeR B BH 50 A& Chairman: Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
B8 - AEERE Members: Mr LIU Che-ning
REELE  »p Mr YU Wai-wai, Jp
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)

Enquiries

PR 7% $8 5 EIR ERER

Service type Standard Results

o7& & Response to enquiries

o BHEEH e Telephone enquiries ¢ 1EAI{ERA' o Within T working day'  99.99%
(BsES) [voice mail messages)

o EHEH * Written enquiries o TEI{ERR’ e Within 7 working days’  100%

EREH

Qualifying Examinations

BR 7 48 5 BB ERE
Service type Standard Results
B4R Issue result slips® ZHEM141E Within 14 working days 100%
e’ THERA after the examination

&R

Licensing

PR 75 %8 51l IR ERX

Service type Standard Results

FRIEFTIREEE  Process new licence W B RSS2 BY Within 10 working days for  99.80%
applications T0EIZERR" new applications®

B IR B 8 R 5 Process renewal BB R R E 1B Within 20 working days for  99.98%
licence applications 7920 1& L 1ER A renewal applications

R T R Refund of application 101B THERA® Within 10 working days® 100%

MR EUHMR  fees for rejected/

B B A cancelled applications

| EERWIRREH—EER- !
TOBBERET EIERMBE - !

¢ EERERFAEZARIZRERERER .
ZRMKAERANERBTEZARAZBEL -

O ARAEERUEZIERERE MBEEMARXMHZT
— AT R EHHBREXFBHRAE
(BIfE R AT B2 B) Bk - MERAFAR
HEERMRZBSEZRFFAZENEATE
MEE ANEIREREMERER WREE
BRATER - B BRI REREHFE - AR
RHARE=F(PINREEEE FHALE
BER)ERABEAE FRIEER T RIR
TERELIEBAE -

O HEUHSNERSRFZT —@AIERET WE  C
WEME AARIFEEERZELETAER
Z N AT ERER -

WENEEER 2014/15F®

The EAA’s working days are from Monday to Friday.
From the next working day following receipt of the enquiry.

Issued by the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority,
authorised by the EAA to administer the examinations.

From the next day following the receipt of an application, the required fee
and documents to the day the licence/statement of particulars of
business is issued (i.e. the day the licence is available for collection). This
service target does not apply to applications which require the EAA
Licensing Committee to determine whether the applicant fulfills the “fit
and proper” requirement and other licensing requirements as prescribed
under the EAO. A longer duration is needed for such cases for the EAA to
make enquiries and for the applicant or any third party (such as the
Official Receiver's Office, trustees-in-bankruptcy or the Police] to
respond before the EAA approves or rejects the application.

From the next day after an application is cancelled or rejected; for
bankruptcy cases, from the next day following the receipt of instructions
from the Official Receiver’s Office or the trustee-in-bankruptcy.
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Complaints and Enforcement

Rk 75 %8 ) EIZ ERR
Service type Standard Results
BRUBIZEF A Acknowledge receipt SETIIEARR Within 5 working days 100%
B & E IR R of written complaints

W B 2 % 35 B Provide a written response 151 T {EX A Within 15 working days 100%

X & MZEF A to complainants upon

EHEmMEE receipt of sufficient

supporting documents

TEE T RS ERER

Complete investigation of non-compliance cases by the Operations Division®:

e RBE=R o Fast Track Cases 31E A A Within 3 calendar months ~ 100%
(REBRD (Cases involving no
FEIT - TEW  witnesses and
=AM B R concerning allegation(s)

NIBIRERER of the Eight Specified

EIHEAEZR) Breaches under the New
Scheme for Disciplinary
Cases only)

o ELBEEZR e Normal Cases 618 A A Within 6 calendar months &
GERREZ (Cases other than Fast N/A
NIB2OL N Track Cases concerning
NER21E not more than 2
B EZR) allegations)

e BWHEZR e Complex Cases 91E A A Within 9 calendar months 7~ 3@
(BRI EER R (Cases other than Fast N/A
EEER track cases and
LASNEY (B 22) Normal Cases)

BAEZFAFALE  Notify complainants of the 1018 T {EXR K Within 10 working days 99.29%

“HR outcome of the case

A5 R A Notify complainees 1018 TERA Within 10 working days 99.70%

(FRA)RE (licensees) of the outcome

[EES of the case

COMFHERBARERR20LFEINA2ZBRZE
FEMNKRFREARZHERMNERBESR-
WEHZE20F3ANAZEBEREEMHESR -
WARBEGTEEEZER-

it cannot be measured as at 31 March 2015 yet.
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This performance pledge was introduced on 24 November 2014 and is
applicable to complaint cases received or non-compliance cases
detected on or after 24 November 2014. For Normal and Complex Cases,
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Appendix II: Achievement of the Administration’s

Performance Standards 2014/15

MR
Disciplinary Proceedings

PR 7% $8 5 EIF EIRER
Service type Standard Results
BITER Conduct the first 5K 8 & 18 5 Within 90 working days 98.01%
4R disciplinary inquiry 90 & T VER A after completion of

hearing of a case investigation

BHEERER

Continuing Professional Development (“CPD”)

BR 75 48 5 EIR ERE
Service type Standard Results
TREEEE Process applications 2018 T 1E R Within 20 working days 100%
EXREBED for endorsement of

R R R CPD activities

BHIHEIEE] Issue certificates of 301 TVER A Within 30 working days 100%
TMEER attendance for

BRI E EAA-organised CPD

EXEEBED activities

COESTZUN
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